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Sub: Annual Report of the Company for the period ended March 31, 2025 and Notice convening 
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Ref.: Regulation 34(1) and other applicable provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
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Dear Sir / Ma’am,  

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and 
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Yours faithfully,  
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NOTICE OF THE 01ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 01ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 
MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY-INTEGRITY INFRABUILD DEVELOPERS LIMITED 
(“COMPANY”) WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 06, 2025 AT 11.30 AM AT 
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT OFFICE NO-02 
INDIABULLS MEGA MALL, JETALPUR ROAD, AKOTA, VADODARA, GUJARAT - 
390020 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company together 

with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and in this regard for the 
period ended March 31, 2025, to pass the following resolutions as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 

as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors' and Auditors' 

thereon laid before the 1st Annual General Meeting, be and are hereby considered and 

adopted.” 

 

2. To re-appoint Mr. Rajendrakumar Natvarlal Sheth (DIN: 09063220), Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director, who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.  

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and other applicable provisions, if any Mr. Rajendrakumar Natvarlal Sheth (DIN: 09063220) 

(Category: Non-Executive Non-Independent Director ), who retires by rotation at this meeting 

and being eligible offered himself for reappointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a 

Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

 

3. To consider and appoint M/s. Jaymin Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration Number 129406W,) as the Statutory Auditors of the company for a term of five 
consecutive years from the Financial Year 2025-26 to the Financial Year 2029-30: 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
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Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and upon recommendation of 

the Audit Committee, the consent of members be and are hereby given for the appointment 

of M/s. Jaymin Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants having (Firm Registration Number 

129406W,) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five years,  i.e. from the 

conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 06th Annual General 

Meeting  i.e. for FY 2025-26 to 2029-30, on such remuneration plus applicable taxes and 

reimbursement of travelling and out of pocket expenses incurred for the purpose of audit, as 

may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, any Director of the company, be and is hereby authorized to 

do the needful, including but not limited to signing, filing and execution of various documents 

including delegation of authority, if any required and to represent the Company and/or to 

appoint consultant, if required to execute whole/part or any action as may be required to give 

effect to the aforementioned resolution.” 

 

By the Order of the Board  
INTEGRITY INFRABUILD DEVELOPERS LIMITED 

 
 

Sd/- 
Keyu                          Keyurkumar Sheth                   

Managing Director                     
(DIN: 02678042)                        
 
Place: Vadodara 
Date: 27th September, 2025 
 
 
Registered Office: 
Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited 
CIN: U42101GJ2024PLC152080 
Address: Office No - 02 Indiabulls Mega Mall,  
Jetalpur Road, Akota, Vadodara, 
Gujarat, India, 390020 
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NOTES 

 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND 

VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE 

A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 

 

A person can act as a Proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in 

aggregate not more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company. A 

Member holding more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company may 

appoint a single person as Proxy and such Proxy shall not act as a Proxy for any other 

Member. 

 

The Proxy form is annexed with this Notice. The instrument appointing the Proxy, in order 

to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly 

completed, stamped and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

Meeting. 

 

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual 

General Meeting (“the Meeting”) are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy 

of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote on their behalf 

at the Meeting. 

 

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the 

Meeting and ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, a Member is entitled to inspect the 

Proxies lodged, at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not 

less than 3 days of notice in writing is given to the Company by such Member. 

 

2. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the 

order of names will be entitled to vote. 

 

3. The Members/Proxies are requested to bring the attendance slip duly filled in for attending 

the Meeting. 

 

 

4. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding, the Register 

of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested will be available for 

inspection at the Meeting. 

 

5. All the documents referred to in the Notice are annexed thereto including the Annual Report 

for the financial year 2024-25 and Notice of the 1st Annual General Meeting are open for 

inspection by the Members, without any fees, at the Registered Office of the Company at 

Office No-02 Indiabulls, Mega Mall, Jetalpur Road, Akota, Vadodara, Gujarat – 390020  

between 11.00 a.m. and 01.00 p.m. on all working days except Saturday and Sunday up to the 

date of the Meeting and the same shall also be made available for inspection by Members at 

the Meeting. 
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Members holding shares in physical form are requested to approach, MUFG Intime India 

Private Limited the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company situated at 

Geetakunj” 1 Bhakti Nagar Society, Behind ABS Tower, Old Padra Road, Vadodara 390 0150, 

India for: 

 

(a) intimating any change in their address and/or bank mandate;  

(b) submitting requests for transfer, transmission, name change, split, consolidation, etc.; 

(c) nominating any person to whom the shares shall vest in the event of death; 

(d) updating/registering their e-mail address for correspondence; and 

(e) any other queries with respect to shares held by them. 

 

6. Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that the Company or its 

Registrar cannot act on any request received directly from them for any change of address 

and/or bank mandate or change in e-mail address. Such changes are to be intimated only to 

the Depository Participants of the Members. 

 

7. Details of Directors retiring by rotation at the ensuing Meeting are provided in the 

explanatory statement annexed to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of (i) Regulation 

36(3) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, forms integral part of the notice. 

 

8. Members who have not registered their e-mail address for receiving all communications 

including Annual Report, Notices and Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically, are 

requested to register the same with their Depository Participants (for shares held in electronic 

form) and with MUFG Intime India Private Limited, the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents 

of the Company (for shares held in physical form). Members, who have registered their e-

mail address, are also entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon request. 

 

9. The Board of Director vide resolution dated 27th September, 2025 has appointed M/s. JNG & 

Co. LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries as scrutinizer for the 1st Annual General Meeting 

of the Company. 

 

10. Voting through electronic means:  

 

I. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

[Management and Administration] Rules, 2014 [as amended] and Regulation 44 of the 

Listing Regulations, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its members 

in respect of the business to be transacted at the 01st AGM. For this purpose, the Company 

has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited [“NSDL”] for 

facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of 

casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system will be provided by NSDL.  

 

II. The facility for voting, either through electronic voting system or through ballot / polling 

paper shall also be made available at the venue of the 01st AGM. Members attending the 

meeting who have not cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be able to exercise 
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their voting rights at the meeting. Members who have already cast their vote through 

remote e-voting may attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again 

at the AGM. 

 

11. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 and Section 110 of the Act read with Rules 

20 and 22 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of the 

Listing Regulations, SS-2 and the MCA Circulars, the Company is pleased to provide remote 

e-voting facility to its Members, to enable them to cast their votes electronically. The detailed 

procedure with respect to remote e-voting is mentioned in note no. 17 of this Notice. 

 

12. The remote e-voting shall commence on Sunday, 02nd November, 2025 at 09:00 a.m. (IST) and 

shall end on Wednesday, 5th November, 2025 at 05:00 p.m. (IST). During this period, Members 

of the Company holding shares in electronic form as on the Cut-Off Date i.e. 30th October, 

2025 may cast their vote electronically. 

 

13. The Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 and Notice of the 1st Annual General 

Meeting, inter- alia, indicating the process and manner of voting along with Attendance Slip 

and Proxy Form are being sent in electronic mode to all the Members holding shares in 

dematerialized form and having their e-mail address registered with their Depository 

Participants and such other Members who have positively consented in writing to receive 

the same by electronic mode. Further physical copies of the above-mentioned documents are 

being sent to all other Members by the permitted mode.  

 

Members, who have received the above documents in electronic mode, are entitled to receive 

the same, free of cost, in physical form, upon making a request in this regard to Skyline 

Financial Services Private Limited, the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company 

or to the Company. The abovementioned documents are also available for download on the 

Company’s website i.e.www.manojjewellerslimited.com and on the websites of the Stock 

Exchanges i.e. NSE Limited at www.nseindia.com 
 

14. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 

Thursday, October 30, 2025, to Wednesday, November 05, 2025. 

 

15. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 

Depository Participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are required to submit 

their PAN details to the Company. 

 

16. Only bonafide members of the Company whose names appear on the Register of 

Members/Register of Beneficial Owners/Proxy holders, in possession of valid attendance 

slips duly filled and signed will be permitted to attend the meeting. The Company reserves 

its right to take all steps as may be deemed necessary to restrict non-members from attending 

the meeting. 

 

17. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:- 
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The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, November 02, 2025, at 09:00 A.M. and ends 
on Wednesday, November 05, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register 
of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Thursday, October 
30, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in 
proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-
off date, being 30th October, 2025. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 

below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 

in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of 

shareholder

s 

 Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholder

s holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 

on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.js

p. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN 

No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on 

registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 

be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 

section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 

Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-

Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-

Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 

page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
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casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not 

registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 

Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 

the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 

Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting 

system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You 

will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 

number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code 

as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 

redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 

page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 

“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below 

for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual 

Shareholder

s holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 

through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 

available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 

The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi 

Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress 

as per the information provided by company. On clicking the 

evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-

Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 

system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the 

e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 
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3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & 

New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting 

link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email 

as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 

user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 

progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 

Service Providers. 

Individual 

Shareholder

s (holding 

securities in 

demat 

mode) login 

through 

their 

depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 

Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository 

site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 

be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
free no. 1800-21-09911 
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B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 

and Client ID is 12****** then your user 

ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 

Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 

and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 
 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given 
below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 
password to login and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 

retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password. 
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c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your 
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf 
file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 
‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 
in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send 
a request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 
on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 

which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-

Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 

the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and 

also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 

on the confirmation page. 
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7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 

letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 

are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to jigar.gandhi@jngandco.in  with 

a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 

individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of 

Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority 

Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 

take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 

will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In 

such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 

“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 

the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 

section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to at 

evoting@nsdl.com  

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
info@integrityinfrabuild.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID 
or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to info@integrityinfrabuild.com. If you are an Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained 
at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

11

mailto:jigar.gandhi@jngandco.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:info@integrityinfrabuild.com
mailto:info@integrityinfrabuild.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com


EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2013 (‘ACT’) THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT SETS OUT ALL MATERIAL FACTS 

RELATING TO ITEM NOS. 3 AND 4 MENTIONED IN THE ACCOMPANYING NOTICE 

 

Item No. 3 

 

M/s. O. P. Rathi & Co., Chartered Accountants having (Firm Registration Number 108718W) 

were appointed as the First Statutory Auditors till the conclusion of this Annual General 

Meeting of the Company.  

 

Accordingly, upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the 

Company at their Meeting held on 27th September, 2025, have recommended, the appointment 

of M/s. Jaymin Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 

129406W,) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company. M/s. Jaymin Shah & Associates, 

Chartered Accountants have confirmed their eligibility for appointment under Section 139 

read with Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013. M/s. Jaymin Shah & Associates will hold 

office for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of the ensuing first Annual 

General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of the sixth Annual General Meeting 

subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

M/s. Jaymin Shah & Associates has a office at Ahmedabad, Gujarat. The firm is registered 

with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). The firm provides professional 

services like auditing, taxation and management consultancy services to clients in India.  

 

M/s. Jaymin Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants, proposed Statutory Auditors will be 

paid a fee of 2.65 lakhs (exclusive of taxes and out-of-pocket expense) for the financial year 

ending March 31, 2026. The Board, in consultation with the audit committee shall approve the 

revisions in the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the remaining part of the tenure. 

 

Besides the audit services, the Company would also obtain certifications from the statutory 

auditors under various statutory regulations and certifications required by banks, statutory 

authorities, audit related services and other permissible non-audit services as required from 

time to time, for which they will be remunerated separately on mutually agreed terms, as 

approved by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee.  

 

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors shall consider approval of revisions to the 

remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the remaining part of the tenure. The Board of 

Directors, in consultation with the Audit Committee, may alter and vary the terms and 

conditions of appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as 

may be mutually agreed with the Statutory Auditors. 

 

 None of the Directors and/ or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives 

is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 5.  
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The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 3 for the approval of Members as 

an Ordinary Resolution 

 

 

 

By the Order of the Board  
INTEGRITY INFRABUILD DEVELOPERS LIMITED 

 
 

Sd/- 
Keyu                          Keyurkumar Sheth                   

Managing Director                     
(DIN: 02678042)                        
 
Place: Vadodara 
Date: 27th September, 2025 
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Disclosure 

Details of the directors seeking appointment/re-appointment in the 1st Annual general 

Meeting as set out in item No. 2 of this notice in terms of regulation 36 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations and SS-2 with respect to Director seeking re-appointment is given below: 

 

Name of the Director Rajendrakumar Natvarlal Sheth 

Director Identification Number 09063220 

Date of Birth 02/01/1953 

Age 72 years 

Qualifications He does not have any specific qualification & 
does not hold any Bachelor / Master or any 
professional degree 

Experience [including expertise in specific 
functional area] / Brief Resume 

He has an experience of over 3 decades in 
multiple activities including Construction 
Industry. 

Terms and conditions of re-appointment Mr. Rajendrakumar Natvarlal Sheth retires by 
rotation at this AGM and being eligible, seeks 
reappointment 

Date of first Appointment 01st June,2024 

Number of Shares held in the Company Holds 793290 equity shares in the company 

Relationship between Directors inter-se and 
with Manager and other KMPs 

He is related to Mr. Keyurkumar Seth-
Chairman and Managing Director and Ms. 
Disha Keyurkumar Seth.  
He is not related to manager and other KMPs 
of the Company. 

Number of meetings of the Board attended 
during the period ended March 31, 2025 

17 Board Meeting during the period ended 
March 31, 2025 

Directorship held in other Public/Private 
companies 

1. Integrity Infrabuild Private Limited 

Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees 
of other Public/Private Companies, if any 

Nil 
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Form No. MGT-11 

PROXY FORM 

 
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014) 
 

CIN                : U42101GJ2024PLC152080 
Name of the Company  : Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited 
Registered Office          : Office No-02 Indiabulls, Mega Mall, Jetalpur Road,  
      Akota, Vadodara, Gujarat - 390020 

 

I/We, _____________________________________, being a Shareholder of Integrity Infrabuild 

Developers Limited hereby appoint  

 

1. Name :  ______________________ 

Address :  ______________________ 

E-mail ID : ______________________ 

Signature : 

As my proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me and on my behalf at the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, November 06, 2025 at Company’ Office 
No-02 Indiabulls, Mega Mall, Jetalpur Road, Akota, Vadodara, Gujarat - 390020, At 11.30 
AM. and any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Resolutions For Against 

 Ordinary Business 

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company 
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors 
and the Auditors thereon; and in this regard for the 
period ended March 31, 2025 

  

2.  To re-appoint Mr. Rajendrakumar Natvarlal Sheth 
(DIN: 09063220), Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Director, who retires by rotation in terms of Section 
152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being 
eligible, seeks re-appointment.  

  

3. 4. To consider and appoint M/s. Jaymin Shah & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration Number 129406W,) as the Statutory 
Auditors of the company for a term of five 
consecutive years from the Financial Year 2025-26 to 
the Financial Year 2029-30: 
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Signed this _____ day of   ______2025   
 
         Signature of shareholders_______________________ 
 
         Signature of proxy holder(s) ______________________  

    
 
Note:      
 

1) This Form of the proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the Meeting.  
 

2) A proxy need not be a member of the Company.  
 

3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 and holding 
in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carry voting 
rights.  

 
4) If a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital carrying voting rights 

may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any 
other member.  
 

5) In case of Joint holder, the vote of the senior who tender as vote, whether in person 
or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion to the vote of other joint holders. 
Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the name stand in the register of 
members.  
 

6) The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member 
from attending in person and voting at the Meeting. 
 

7) This is optional please put a tick mark ( ) in appropriate column against the resolution 
indicated above. In case of members wishes his/her vote to be used differently, 
he/she should indicate the number of shares under the columns “For”, “Against”. In 
case the members leave the column(s) blank, the proxy will be entitled to vote in the 
manner he/she thinks appropriate. 

 
8) An instrument of Proxy duly filled, stamped and signed, is valid only for the Meeting 

to which it relates including any adjournment thereof.  
 

9) An instrument of Proxy is valid only if it is properly stamped. Unstamped or 
inadequately stamped Proxies or Proxies upon which the stamps have not been 
cancelled are invalid.  
 

10) The Proxy-holder should prove his identity at the time of attending the meeting.  
 

11) An authorised representative of a body corporate or of the President of India or of the 
Governor of a State, holding shares in a company, may appoint a Proxy under his 
signature. 

 

Affix 
revenue 
stamp 
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12) A proxy form which does not state the name of the Proxy should not be considered 
valid.  

 
13) If an undated Proxy, which is otherwise complete in all respects, is lodged within the 

prescribed time limit, it should be considered valid.  
 

14) If a Company receives multiple Proxies for the same holdings of a Member, the proxy 
which is dated last is considered valid; if they are not dated or bear the same date 
without specific mention of time, all such multiple Proxies should be treated as 
invalid. 

 
15) If a Proxy had been appointed for the original Meeting and such Meeting is 

adjourned, any Proxy given for the adjourned Meeting revokes the Proxy given for 
the original Meeting. 

  
16) A Proxy later in date revokes any Proxy/Proxies dated prior to such Proxy.  

 
17) A Proxy is valid until written notice of revocation has been received by the company 

before the commencement of the Meeting or adjourned Meeting, as the case may be. 
A Proxy need not be informed of the revocation of the Proxy issued by the Member. 
Even an undated letter of revocation of Proxy should be accepted. Unless the Articles 
provide otherwise, a notice of revocation should be signed by the same person who 
had signed the Proxy.  

 
18) Requisitions, if any, for inspection of Proxies should be received in writing from a 

member at least three days before the commencement of the Meeting. 
  

19) Proxies should be made available for inspection during the period beginning twenty-
four hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the Meeting and ending 
with the conclusion of the Meeting. 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 

01st Annual General Meeting – for period ended 31st March, 2025 

Shareholders attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the 

attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall.  

I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Office No-02 Indiabulls, 
Mega Mall, Jetalpur Road, Akota, Vadodara, Gujarat – 390020 on Thursday, November 06, 
2025, at the Office No-02 Indiabulls, Mega Mall, Jetalpur Road, Akota, Vadodara, Gujarat – 
390020, At 11.30 AM 

Signature of the Shareholder/ 

Proxy/Representative present 

Regd. Folio 

Name of the Shareholder 

Number of Shares 

_____________ 

Signature 

E-mail Address______________________ 

Note: please fill up the attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. 
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Route map 

(Pursuant to provisions of SS-2 - 1.2.4 of Secretarial Standard issued by ICSI) 

Route map for the venue of 1st Annual Genarl Meeting to be held at Office No-02 

Indiabulls, Mega Mall, Jetalpur Road, Akota, Vadodara, Gujarat – 390020 at 11.30 AM 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

To 
The Members, 
Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited  
 
Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 01st Annual Report on business and operations 
of Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited (“the Company”) along with the Audited Financial 
Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and the report of the Auditors thereon. 
 
1. COMPANY SPECIFIC INFORMATION: 

 
The Company was originally incorporated as a partnership firm. Subsequently, Partnership 
Firm was converted to public Limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 with the name 
and style of ―Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited and received a Certificate of 
Incorporation from the Registrar of Companies as on June 01, 2024.  
 
The Company is engaged into the business of providing construction and maintenance of 
motorways, streets, roads, other vehicular and pedestrian ways, highways, bridges, tunnels, 
and subways.  
 
2. FINANCIAL RESULTS: 
 
The Financial performance of the Company the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 is 
summarized below:   
                                                                                                                                                                                 
(Amount In Lakhs) 

Particulars As on 31/03/2025 As on 31/03/2024 

Revenue from operations 10870.38 6,447.02 

Other income 20.88 13.80 

Total income 10891.26 6,460.82 

Total expenses 10512.65 6,287.69 

Profit / Loss Before Exceptional and 
Extra Ordinary Items and Tax 

378.61 173.12 

Exceptional and Extra Ordinary Items - - 

Profit / Loss before tax 378.61 173.12 

Tax Expense: Current Tax 124.56 61.32 

Deferred Tax (23.38) - 
 

Profit / Loss for the Period / After Tax 277.44 111.80 

Earnings Per Share (EPS)   

Basic 8.95 - 

Diluted 8.95 - 

  

 

20



3. INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER:

During the year, pursuant to the Initial Public Offering ("IPO") of the Integrity Infrabuild 
Developers Limited ("Company"), which opened for subscription on May 13, 2025 and closed 
on May 15, 2025, 12,00,000 Equity Shares of face value. of Rs. 10/- each (*Equity Shares"), were 
allotted at a price of Rs. 100/- per Equity Share (including a share premium of Rs. 90/- per 
Equity Share), to the respective applicants in the various categories as approved in 
consultation with the authorized representative of the Designated Stock Exchange viz. 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

4. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE / STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

The Company was originally incorporated as a partnership firm. Subsequently, Partnership 
Firm was converted to public Limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 with the name 
and style of ―Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited and received a Certificate of 
Incorporation from the Registrar of Companies as on June 01, 2024. 

During the financial year ended under review, the total income of your Company stood at Rs. 
10891.26 lakhs as compared to previous year of Rs. Rs. 6,46082 lakhs. The Company earned a 
profit after tax of Rs. 277.44 lakhs as compared to previous year of Rs. 111.80 lakhs. 

5. DIVIDEND:

To conserve the resources for future prospect and growth of the Company, your directors do 
not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. 

6. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Your directors do not propose to transfer any amount to reserves for the year under review.  

7. SHARE CAPITAL:

(a) Authorized Capital: 

The Authorized share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2025 stood at Rs. 450 lakhs 
comprising of 45,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

(b) Issued Capital: 

The issued capital of the Company as on March 31, 2025 stood at Rs. 310 lakhs comprising of 
31,00,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

However, the Company has allotted 12,00,000 Equity Shares of face value. of Rs. 10/- each 
(*Equity Shares"), at a price of Rs. 100/- per Equity Share (including a share premium of Rs. 
90/- per Equity Share), to the respective applicants pursuant to the Initial Public Offering 
("IPO") as on May 16, 2025. 

Hence, as on date, the issued capital of the Company stands at ₹430 lakhs, comprising 

43,00,000 equity shares of ₹10 each. 
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(c) Paid-up Capital:  
 
The paid-up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2025 stood at Rs. 310 lakhs 
comprising of 31,00,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each. 
 
However, the Company has allotted 12,00,000 Equity Shares of face value. of Rs. 10/- each 
(*Equity Shares"), at a price of Rs. 100/- per Equity Share (including a share premium of Rs. 
90/- per Equity Share), to the respective applicants pursuant to the Initial Public Offering 
("IPO") as on May 16, 2025. 
 
Hence, as on date, the paid up capital of the Company stands at ₹430 lakhs, comprising 
43,00,000 equity shares of ₹10 each. 
 
8. EMPLOYEE STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS PLAN: 

 
During the year, there was not employee stock option plan. 
 
9. CHANGE OF NAME OF THE COMPANY CONSEQUENT TO CONVERSION OF 

PARTNERSHIP FIRM INTO PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY: 
 
The Company was originally incorporated as a partnership firm. Subsequently, Partnership 
Firm was converted to public Limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 with the name 
and style of ―Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited and received a Certificate of 
Incorporation from the Registrar of Companies June 01, 2024. Thereafter, the Company’s 
equity shares were listed on SME Platform National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE 
EMERGE”) on May 20, 2025.". 
 
10. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE 

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED 
BETWEEN THE END OF THE PERIOD TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS RELATES AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT: 

 
Initial Public Offer (“The IPO”) 

 
A major highlight for the year under review was that the Company successfully came out 
with an Initial Public Offer of equity shares of the Company aggregating to Rs. 1200 Lakhs 
divided into 12,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The issue was entirely Fresh Issue of 
equity shares. 
  
The company allotted 12,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on May 16, 2025, these shares 
were issued pursuant to the Initial Public Offering ("IPO") of Integrity Infrabuid Limited (“ 
the Company”)  which was open for subscription from May 13, 2025 to May 15, 2025. These 
equity shares have been admitted to dealings and are listed on the NSE EMERGE SME 
Platform with effect from May 20, 2025.   
 
The allotment was made to all applicants for the 12,00,000 equity shares in dematerialized 
form. The shares were issued at a price of ₹100/- per equity share, which includes a share 
premium of ₹90/- per share. 
 
 
We are gratified and humbled by the faith shown in the Company by the market participants. 
We are also grateful to our customers for their trust shown in our capabilities to consistently 
deliver high-quality services. 
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11. FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

As per provision to regulation Rule 4(1) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 notified vide Notification No. G.S.R 111 (E) on 16th February, 2015, Companies 
whose shares are listed on SME Platform of BSE Limited as referred to in Chapter XB of SEBI 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, are exempted from the 
compulsory requirements of adoption of IND-AS w.e.f. 01st April, 2017. 

The Audited financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2025 have been prepared 
in accordance with the Accounting Standards Schedule III provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “The Act”) read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
as amended from time to time. The estimates and judgements relating to the Financial 
Statements are made on a prudent basis, so as to reflect in a true and fair manner, the form 
and substance of transactions and reasonably present the Company’s state of affairs, profits 
and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025. The Notes to the Financial Statements 
adequately cover the Audited Statements and form an integral part of this Report. The 
Audited financial statements together with Auditor’s Report form part of the Annual Report. 

12. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, SECURITIES COVERED OR
INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The details of loans, investment, guarantees and securities covered under the provisions of 
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are provided in the financial statements. 

13. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated in 
Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI Listing Regulations is given as a separate part of the Annual 
Report. It contains a detailed write up and explanation about the performance of the Company 
as per “Annexure-I”. 

14. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF
THE RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

The Company has framed formal Risk Management framework for risk assessment and risk 
minimization for Indian operation which is periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors 
to ensure smooth operations and effective management control. The Audit Committee also 
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework of the Company, the key risks 
associated with the business and measures and steps in place to minimize the same. 

15. POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

The Remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance based on review of 
achievements on a periodical basis. The remuneration policy is in consonance with the 
existing industry practice and is designed to create a high-performance culture. It enables the 
Company to attract, retain and motivate employees to achieve results. The Company has  

made adequate disclosures to the members on the remuneration paid to Directors from time 
to time. The Company's Policy on director's appointment and remuneration including criteria 
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other 
matters provided under Section 178 (3) of the Act is available on the website of the Company 
at www.integrityinfrabuild.com 
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The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive, non-executive and independent 
directors to maintain the independence of the Board,  and separate its functions of governance 
and management.   
 
The Policy of the Company on Director’s Appointment and Remuneration, including criteria 
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of director and other matters 
provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, adopted by the Board, is available 
on the Company’s website www.integrityinfrabuild.com We affirm that the Remuneration 
paid to the director is as per the terms laid out in the said policy. 
 
16. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE 

COMPANY AND JOINT VENTURES: 
 

The Company does not have any Holding / Subsidiary/Associate Company and Joint 
Venture. 
 
17. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 
 
During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  
 
18.  REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY THE AUDITORS: 

 
During the year under review, neither the Statutory nor the Secretarial Auditors has reported 
to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 any instances of 
fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees, the details of which would 
need to be mentioned in the Board's Report. 
 
19. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 

 
The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to your Company 
because your company incorporated on 01st June, 2024 and not completed 3 years from 
incorporation. As the Company does not fall under the criteria limits mentioned in the said 
section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the same is not applicable to your company. Further, 
the Company has not taken voluntary initiative towards any activity mentioned for Corporate 
Social Responsibility. 
 
20. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:  
 
 
DIRECTORS: 
 
As on March 31, 2025, the Board comprise five (5) Directors comprising of two (2) Independent 
Directors, one (1) Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director and two (2) Executive Directors 
as summarized below: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Designation Category 

1 Keyurkumar Sheth (DIN: 
02678042) 

Chairman & 
Managing Director 

Key Managerial Personnel 

2 Nikhil Malpani (DIN: 
09816032) 

Director Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

3 Shivam Dhananjay Dave 
(DIN: 10687611) 

Director Non-Executive Independent 
Director 
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4 Rajendrakumar Natvarlal 
Sheth (DIN: 09063220) 

Director Non-Executive Director 

5 Disha Keyurkumar Sheth 
(DIN: 09063221) 

Whole-time director Executive Director 

The position of the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director are held by the same 
individual, Mr. Keyurkumar Sheth (DIN: 02678042), Executive director is the Chairman of the 
Board. 

During the year under review, following Director’s position were changed. 

1. Mr. Nikhil Malpani is appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director in the Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting held on 26th June, 2024 for a tenure of five years, w.e.f. 26th

June, 2024, till June 25, 2029.

2. Mr. Shivam Dhananjay Dave is appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director in
the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 28th June, 2024 for a tenure of five years,
w.e.f June 28, 2024 and till June 27, 2029.

3. Mr. Rajendrakumar Natvarlal Sheth is appointed as Non-Executive Director in the
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 26th June, 2024 for a tenure of five years, w.e.f.
26th June, 2024, till June 25, 2029.

Apart from the above changes, there were no other changes in the composition of the Board 
of Directors of the Company during the year and till the date of Board’s Report. 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

In terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company as at 31.03.2025: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Designation Category 

1 Keyurkumar Sheth (DIN: 
02678042) 

Managing Director Key Managerial Personnel 

2 Disha Keyurkumar Sheth 
(DIN: 09063221) 

Whole-time director Executive Director 

3 Disha Keyurkumar Sheth CFO Key Managerial Personnel 

4 Krupa Jagdish Dholakia Company Secretary Key Managerial Personnel 

1. Mr. Keyurkumar Sheth has been redesignated from Director to Managing Director of the
Company, with effect from June 26, 2024, for a tenure of five years, commencing on June
26, 2024 and concluding on June 25, 2029.

2. Mrs. Disha Keyurkumar Sheth has been redesignated from Director to Whole Time
Director with effect from 26th June, 2024 for a tenure of five years, commencing June 26,
2024 and concluding on June 25, 2029.

3. Mrs. Disha Keyurkumar Sheth is appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 28th June, 2024.
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4. Mrs. Krupa Jagdish Dholakia is appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
w.e.f. 11th July, 2024.

21. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEMBERS:

A.    BOARD MEETING 

The Directors of the Company met at regular intervals at least once in a quarter with the gap 

between two meetings not exceeding 120 days to take a view of the Company’s policies and 

strategies apart from the Board Matters. 

(i) During the year under the review, the Board of Directors met 17(Seventeen) times as 

mentioned below. 

Sr. 

No. 

Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

1 10/06/2024 3 3 

2 24/06/2024 3 3 

3 26/06/2024 3 3 

4 28/06/2024 4 4 

5 03/07/2024 5 5 

6 11/07/2024 5 5 

7 22/07/2024 5 5 

8 06/08/2024 5 5 

9 07/08/2024 5 5 

10 10/08/2024 5 5 

11 20/09/2024 5 5 

12 26/12/2024 5 5 

13 15/01/2025 5 5 

14 01/02/2025 5 5 

15 06/03/2025 5 5 

16 25/03/2025 5 5 

17 31/03/2025 5 5 

(ii) Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings during the year under review. 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the Director Designation No. of 

Meetings 

which were 

entitled to 

attend 

No. of 

Meetings 

attended 

1 Keyurkumar Sheth Managing Director 17 17 

2 Disha Keyurkumar Sheth Whole-Time Director 17 17 

3 Rajendrakumar Natvarlal Sheth Director 17 17 

4 Shivam Dhananjay Dave Director 13 13 

5 Nikhil Malpani Director 14 14 

B. GENERAL MEETING 

Type of meeting Date of Total Number of No. of Members 
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meeting Members entitled 

to attend meeting 

Attended 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 26/06/2024 7 7 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 28/06/2024 7 7 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 03/07/2024 7 7 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 08/08/2024 7 7 

22. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Company has three committees viz; Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee which has been established as a part 
of the better Corporate Governance practices and is in compliance with the requirements of 
the relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes. 

A. Composition of Audit Committee: 

The Board of Directors has constituted Audit Committee in accordance with Regulation 18 of 
the SEBI Listing Regulations and under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Name of the Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in 
Committee 

Shivam Dhananjay Dave Non-Executive -Independent Director Chairperson 

Keyurkumar Sheth Managing Director Member 

Nikhil Malpani Non-Executive -Independent Director Member 

Meeting of Audit Committee and Relevant Quorum: 

The Audit Committee shall meet at least four times in a year and not more than one hundred 
and twenty days shall elapse between two meetings. The quorum for Audit Committee 
meeting shall either be two members or one third of the members of the Audit Committee, 
whichever is greater, with at least two Independent Directors. 

The Chairman of the Committee must attend the Annual General Meetings of the Company 
to provide clarifications on matters relating to the audit.  

During the year under review, 1 (One) Audit Committee meetings was held as on 25th March, 
2025 . All the members were present in the committee meeting.  

Company Secretary shall act as the secretary to the Audit Committee. 

B. Composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee: 

The Board has constituted Stakeholder Relationship Committee in accordance with Regulation 
20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and under the provisions of section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Name of the Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in 
Committee 

Nikhil Malpani Non-Executive -Independent Director Chairperson 

Disha Keyurkumar Sheth Whole Time Director Member 
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Keyurkumar Sheth Managing Director Member 

Meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee and Relevant Quorum: 

The quorum necessary for a meeting of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee shall be two 
members or one third of the members, whichever is greater. The Committee is required to 
meet at least once a year.  

During the year under review, 1 (one) Stakeholder Relationship Committee meeting was held 
as on 25th March, 2025. All the members were present in the committee meeting..  

Company Secretary shall act as the secretary to the Stakeholder Relationship Committee. 

C. Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

The Board has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with 
Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and with section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

Name of the Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in 
Committee 

Shivam Dhananjay Dave Non-Executive -Independent Director Chairperson 

Nikhil Malpani Non-Executive -Independent Director Member 

Rajendrakumar Natvarlal 
Sheth 

Non – Executive Director Member 

Meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Relevant Quorum: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall meet once in a year. The quorum for a 
meeting of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee shall be two members present.  

During the year under review, Three (3) Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting 
was held as on 26th June, 2024, 28th June,2024 and 11th July, 2024.  All the members were present 
in the committee meeting. 

Company Secretary shall act as the secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. 

23. BOARD EVALUATION:

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its “own performance”, its 
“Board committees” and of “individual directors” in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the 
directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness 
of board processes, information and functioning, etc.  

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the 
committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, 
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.  

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) reviewed the 
performance of the individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of 
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the individual director to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues 
to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. 

In a separate meeting of independent Directors, performance of non-independent directors, 
performance of the board as a whole was evaluated, the same was discussed in the Board 
meeting that followed the meeting of the independent Directors at which the report as 
submitted by the Independent Directors was taken on record and discussed. 

24. AUDITORS:

a) Statutory Auditor:

M/s. O. P. Rathi & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 108718W), Vadodara, 
were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company on from the Board Meeting held 
on July 03, 2024 to conduct the audit from the period commencing from the date of 
incorporation of the company till the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

The Board and audit Committee further recommends to appoint M/s. Jaymin Shah & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditor of the company to hold office for 
the term of 5 years i.e. 2025-2026 to 2029-2030 to conduct the statutory audit of the company, 
subject to the approval of members in the ensuing general meeting.  

The Auditor’s report for the year ended 31st March, 2025 has been issued with an unmodified 
opinion, by the Statutory Auditor. 

b) Secretarial Auditor:

In terms of provisions of Section 204 of the Act and relevant rules thereunder, every listed 
company is required to annex with its Board’s Report, a secretarial audit report, issued by a 
Practicing Company Secretary.  

Your Company got Listed on the SME Platform of NSE Limited w.e.f. 20th May, 2025, the 
requirement for Appointment of Secretarial Auditor and also the Secretarial Audit Report is 
not applicable on the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25.  

However, The Board of Directors of the Company had voluntarily appointed M/s JNG & Co. 
LLP, Company Secretaries, Practicing Company Secretary to undertake Secretarial Audit of 
the Company for the financial year i.e. 2024-25 in line with the good corporate governance 
commitment.  

Further, the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. JNG & Co. LLP , 
Company Secretaries, Practicing Company Secretary to undertake Secretarial Audit of the 
Company for the financial year 2025-26 and 2026-27 vide board meeting dated May 30, 2025. 

The Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended March, 2025 is annexed herewith as Annexure 

– II in Form MR-3. There are no adverse observations in the Secretarial Audit Report which
call for explanation. 

c) Internal Auditor:

According to section 138 of Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 
as per recommendations of Audit Committee of the Company M/s. SVJK & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 135182W)), were appointed as the Internal 
Auditor of the Company for Financial Year 2025-26 and Financial Year 2026-27. 
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d) Cost Audit:

Maintenance of cost records and requirements of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions 
of Section 148(1) of the Act are not applicable for the business activities carried out by the 
Company. 

25. EXPLANATIONS / COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION,
RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE:

i. Auditors’ Report:

The statutory auditor M/s. O. P. Rathi & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 
108718W), were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company on from the Board 
Meeting held on July 03, 2024 to conduct the audit from the period commencing from the date 
of incorporation of the company till the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

The auditor's report includes an Emphasis of Matter section for certain matters, which are self-
explanatory in nature.  

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by Statutory 
Auditor of the Company, in audit report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 

ii. Secretarial Auditor’s Report:
The Secretarial Audit report, as issued by the auditors in Form MR-3 does not contain any 
observation or qualification requiring explanation or comments from the Board under Section 
134[3] of the Act. 

26. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company has set Familiarization programme for Independent Directors with regard to 
their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the 
Company operates, the business model of the Company etc.  

For details of the Familiarisation programme conducted, kindly refer Corporate Governance 
Report which forms part of this Annual Report. 

27. BOARD EVALUATION:

In terms of the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, a structured questionnaire 
was prepared after taking into consideration the various aspects of the Board functioning like 
composition of the Board and its committees, culture, execution and performance of specific 
duties, obligations and governance.  

The board carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, individual 
directors as well as the working of the committees of the board. The performance evaluation 
of board and committees was carried out by the board after seeking all inputs from all the 
directors on the basis of criteria such as composition, structure, effectiveness and functioning 
of the Board and its respective committees.  

The performance evaluation of the individual directors was carried out by the entire board 
excluding the director being evaluated.  

In the separate meeting of independent directors, performance evaluation of the Chairperson 
and the Non-Independent Directors and board as a whole was carried out taking into account 
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views of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The overall performance of chairperson, 
Executive directors, Non-Executive Directors, Board and Committees of the Board was found 
satisfactory. 

28. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Corporate governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values 
aimed at enhancing an organization's brand and reputation. This is ensured by taking ethical 
business decisions and conducting business with a firm commitment to values, while meeting 
stakeholders' expectations. At Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited it is imperative that 
our company affairs are managed in a fair and transparent manner. This is vital to gain and 
retain the trust of our stakeholders. The Company is committed to maintain the highest 
standards of corporate governance and adhere to the corporate governance requirements set 
out by SEBI. The Company has also implemented several best corporate governance practices 
as prevalent globally.  

As the securities of your Company are listed at NSE-SME Platform, the Corporate Governance Report 
as per Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to your Company. 

29. DETAILS ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RELATED TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Your Company has put in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements, some of which are outlined below: 

Your Company has adopted accounting policies which are in line with the Accounting 
Standards prescribed in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 that continue to 
apply under Section 133 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable. These are in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in India. Changes in polices, if any, are approved in 
consultation with the Auditors.  

The Management periodically reviews the financial performance of your Company against 
the approved plans across various parameters and takes necessary action, wherever 
necessary. 

30. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AS ON THE CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL YEAR:

Female: 5 

Male: 48 

Transgender: Nil 

31. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

In our endeavour to promote ‘green living’, your Company initiated several measures to 
prevent water and air pollution at all the departments of the Plant. 

31



Simultaneously, your Company is also making continuous efforts to reduce wastage and 
optimise energy consumption by adopting innovative measures. 

Following steps are in place/planned for energy conservation: 

•A. Warm Mix Asphalt (WMA):

1. Produced and laid at lower temperatures than traditional hot mix asphalt.

2. Reduces fuel consumption and greenhouse gas emissions.

B. Roller-Compacted Concrete (RCC): 

Combines the strength of concrete with the speed of asphalt paving. Ideal for industrial roads 
and heavy traffic areas. 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION: 

Your Company focused its efforts on process improvement, which has helped in optimising 
productivity. 

Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: 

During the year, the Company upgraded many of its processes using efficient/ automatic 
equipment imbibing advanced technology to optimise productivity and cost. 

Followings technology upgradation has been done in various areas: 

•Ashitech Batchmix Plant is used for High-Quality Mix Production which ensures precise
proportioning of aggregates, bitumen, and filler. 

• Unipave Ashpalt Paver ensures uniform mat thickness and smooth surface finish due to
precise screed control and it’s advanced grade and slope control system ensures perfect level 
and alignment. 

There were no foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year under review. 

Sr. No. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo 01/04/2024 To 31/03/2025 

1. Foreign exchange earnings Nil 

2. Foreign exchange outgo Nil 

32. MANAGING THE RISKS OF FRAUD, CORRUPTION AND UNETHICAL
BUSINESS PRACTICES:

a) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has established vigil mechanism and framed whistle blower policy for 
Directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. 

b) Business Conduct Policy:

The Company has framed “Business Conduct Policy”. Every employee is required to review 
and sign the policy at the time of joining and an undertaking shall be given for adherence to 
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the policy. The objective of the policy is to conduct the business in an honest, transparent and 
in an ethical manner. The policy provides for anti-bribery and avoidance of other corruption 
practices by the employees of the Company. 

33. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on 
March 31, 2025 is available on the Company’s website at www.integrityinfrabuild.com. 

34. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS/ COURTS/ TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN
STATUS AND THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/courts that would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

35. STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of 
the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in this Report as Annexure-III which forms part of this 
Report. 

36. DISCLOSURES BY DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors has submitted necessary disclosures under Companies Act, 2013, and 
declarations as to compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company. 

Further, under Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the listing regulation, 
a certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors as received from JNG & Co. LLP, Practicing 
Company Secretary, forming part of the Annual Report as “Annexure IV” 

Declaration By Independent Directors: 

Mr. Nikhil Malpani and Mr. Shivam Dhananjay Dave, Independent Directors of the Company 
have confirmed to the Board that they meet the criteria of Independence as specified under 
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and they qualify to be Independent Director. They 
have also confirmed that they meet the requirements of Independent Director as mentioned 
under Regulation 25 (8) and 16 (1) (b) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The confirmations were noted by the Board. 

37. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, your company has not accepted any deposit within the 
meaning of section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.  

However, Company has accepted unsecured loans from its directors and other Related Parties 
and the balances outstanding as on 31.03.2025 as given in the notes to the Financial Statements 
in accordance with the Accounting Standards. 
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38. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134 (3)(c) and Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the best of their knowledge and belief the Board of Directors hereby submit that: 

a. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 the
applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, 
have been followed and there is no material departure from the same; 

b. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of period and of the profit of the 
Company for the year ended on 31st March, 2025. 

c. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

d. The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;

e. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively and 

f. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the year ended 31st March 2025 
were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business and in compliance with the 
applicable provisions of the Act, Rules made thereunder and the Listing Regulations. 

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee, the Board and the 
shareholders, if required for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is 
obtained for transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. The transactions entered 
into pursuant to omnibus approval so granted, are subsequently audited and a statement 
giving details of all related party transactions is placed before the Audit Committee and the 
Board of Directors for their approval on a quarterly basis. 

The details of transactions with Related Parties are given in the notes to the Financial 
Statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards. 

Particulars of contracts/ arrangements with related parties entered into under section 188[1] 
are available in Form AOC-2 as “Annexure- V” to this report. 

The Company has not given any loan to its Associate Company and hence disclosure under 
Part A of Schedule V read with regulation 34 [3] of Listing Regulations is not required. 

As required under Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated 
a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions. The policy on dealing with Related Party 
Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website at 
www.integrityinfrabuild.com 
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40. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE [PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL] ACT, 2013:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a 
‘Respect for Gender’ Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment in 
line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace [Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal] Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. 

The said policy is uploaded on the website of the Company at www.integrityinfrabuild.com 

Your directors state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal] Act, 
2013. 

41. DISCLOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE
MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961:

In accordance with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and the rules framed 
thereunder, the Company is committed to providing all benefits and protection as mandated 
under the Act to its eligible women employees. 

The Company has adopted policies to ensure that all eligible women employees are granted 
maternity leave and other related benefits as per the statutory provisions. The Company also 
strives to provide a safe, supportive and inclusive work environment for women employees 
during and after their maternity period. 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all applicable provisions of 
the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. No complaints or concerns relating to maternity benefit non-
compliance were reported during the financial year. 

The Board of Directors remains committed to upholding the rights and welfare of its women 
employees in compliance with the applicable laws and best practices. 

42. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND:

Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of dividend remaining 
unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years shall be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (“IEPF”). During the period under review, there was no unpaid or 
unclaimed dividend in the “Unpaid Dividend Account” because company has not completed 
seven years from incorporation. Therefore, there were no funds which were required to be 
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

43. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING
UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

There was no application made against the company or no proceeding pending under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year under review. 

44. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION
DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION
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DONE WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM THE BANKS AND FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS: 

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of Loans taken from 
Banks and Financial Institutions. 

45. GREEN INITIATIVE:

In compliance with Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent only 
through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the 
Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 will 
also be available on the Company’s website at www.integrityinfrabuild.com 

46. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Directors would like to extend their sincere gratitude to the Company's customers, 
vendors, and investors for their unwavering confidence and patronage. We are deeply 
appreciative of the continuous support received from financial institutions, business 
associates, regulatory and governmental authorities, whose cooperation, support, and 
guidance have been instrumental in our success.  

The Directors express their utmost appreciation for the dedicated efforts and contributions of 
every employee including the workmen at our manufacturing plants, who have demonstrated 
unwavering support and resilience during these challenging times. It is through the collective 
efforts of our stakeholders and employees that we continue to thrive and achieve our goals. 

For and on behalf of the Board      
Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited 

Sd/-            Sd/- 
 Keyurkumar Sheth         Disha Keyurkumar Sheth 
Managing Director  Whole Time Director 
(DIN: 02678042)          (DIN: 09063221) 

Place: Vadodara 
Dated: 27th September,2025 

Encl.:  
Annexure-I- Management Discussion And Analysis Report 
Annexure-II- Secretarial Audit Report 
Annexure-III- Particulars of Employee 
Annexure-IV- Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors 
Annexure-V  Form AOC-2 
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ANNEXURE – I 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

1. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS:

The Company was originally incorporated as a partnership firm. Subsequently, Partnership 
Firm was converted to public Limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 with the name 
and style of ―Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited and received a Certificate of 
Incorporation from the Registrar of Companies as on June 01, 2024.  

Further the Company has issued 12,00,000 equity share as on May 16, 2025 pursuant to Initial 
Public Offer (IPO) and listed on the NSE EMERGE SME Platform with effect from May 20, 
2025. 

Your Company is engaged in the business construction and maintenance of motorways, 
streets, roads, other vehicular and pedestrian ways, highways, bridges, tunnels, and subways. 
While the construction industry remains the largest customer segment, your company 
continues to invest in construction modernization, including roads, highways, bridges, 
tunnels, urban infrastructure, and industrial development. Consequently, your Company has 
been able to make good progress in acquiring new international as well as domestic 
customers/brands in various markets. 

2. COMPANY OVERVIEW AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE:

Your Company is engaged in the construction and maintenance of motorways, streets, roads, 

highways, bridges, tunnels, subways, and other vehicular and pedestrian pathways. With a 

strong foundation in civil infrastructure, the Company has consistently delivered high-quality 

projects across geographies. 

During the year under review, the Company made significant strides in expanding its 

customer base, both domestically and internationally. Strategic investments in construction 

modernization—particularly in smart highways, resilient bridges, and sustainable urban 

infrastructure—have enhanced operational efficiency and project delivery timelines. 

Key highlights include: 

• Successful completion of 112 Projects Since incorporation of Rural Roads and Bridges

with major work of Roads.

• Entry into Tapi, Bharuch & Rajpipla Road & Building Department through

Subcontracting.

• Adoption of advanced construction technologies such as BIM, precast systems, and

automated machinery.

3. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

The Company recorded robust growth in revenue and profitability, driven by increased 

project execution and improved cost management. Enhanced bidding capabilities and a 

diversified project portfolio have contributed to a healthy order book. 

• Revenue from operations grew by Rs. 310.00 Lakhs to Rs. 587.44 Lakhs.
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• EBITDA margins improved by Rs. 173.12 Lakhs to Rs. 378.61 Lakhs reflecting

operational efficiencies.

• Net profit increased by Rs. 111.80 Lakhs to Rs. 277.44 Lakhs supported by higher asset

utilization and optimized resource deployment.

4. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:

A. OPPORTUNITIES: 

• Government-led infrastructure programs

• Urbanization & Smart Cities: Rapid urban expansion and smart city initiatives are

creating demand for roads, subways, and utility infrastructure.

B. THREATS: 

• Regulatory Volatility: Frequent changes in land acquisition laws, environmental

clearances, and taxation can delay projects.

• Input Cost Inflation: Rising prices of cement, steel, and fuel impact project margins.

• Execution Bottlenecks: Land acquisition delays, labor shortages, and bureaucratic red

tape remain persistent challenges.

• Climate Risks: Extreme weather events and sustainability mandates increase design

complexity and compliance costs.

5. MODERNIZATION AND INNOVATION:

Your Company continues to invest in construction modernization, focusing on: 

• Digital project management tools for real-time monitoring.

• Green construction practices and materials.

• Workforce training and safety enhancements.

These initiatives have not only improved project outcomes but also positioned the Company 

as a preferred partner for complex infrastructure projects. 

6. OUTLOOK:

The outlook for the infrastructure sector remains positive, with continued investments 
expected in roads, highways, bridges, and urban mobility. Your Company is well-positioned 
to capitalize on these opportunities through its technical expertise, strategic partnerships, and 
commitment to innovation. 

The management remains confident in sustaining growth momentum and delivering long-
term value to stakeholders. 

7. RISKS AND CONCERNS:
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Engaging in the construction and maintenance of infrastructure especially roads, highways, 

bridges, tunnels, and the extraction of raw materials comes with a wide spectrum of risks. 

These span from operational and environmental to financial and regulatory. Here's a 

breakdown of the key risk categories you should be aware of: 

→ Project Execution and Operational Risks: 

• Delays in land acquisition, environmental clearances, and statutory approvals can

impact project timelines and cost estimates.

• Unforeseen geological or site conditions may lead to design modifications and

execution challenges.

• Labour availability and productivity fluctuations, especially in remote or high-risk

zones, can affect delivery schedules.

→ Market and Economic Volatility: 

• Fluctuations in commodity prices—particularly steel, cement, and bitumen—can

adversely affect project margins.

• Interest rate movements and inflationary pressures may impact borrowing costs and

working capital requirements.

• Global economic uncertainties, including currency volatility, can influence

international project viability and profitability.

→ Regulatory and Compliance Risks 

• Changes in government policies, tax regimes, or infrastructure funding models may

alter the business landscape.

• Non-compliance with evolving environmental, labour, or safety regulations could

result in penalties or reputational damage.

• Delays in arbitration or dispute resolution mechanisms may affect cash flows and

project continuity.

→ Client and Contractual Risks 

• Dependence on government contracts exposes the Company to payment delays, scope

changes, and administrative bottlenecks.

• Contractual disputes, liquidated damages, or performance guarantees may pose

financial and legal risks.

• Concentration of revenue from a limited number of clients or geographies may affect

business resilience.

→ Technology and Cybersecurity Risks 

• Increasing reliance on digital project management tools and automated systems

introduces vulnerabilities to cyber threats.
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• Inadequate data protection or system failures could disrupt operations and

compromise sensitive information.

→ Environmental and Social Risks 

• Climate-related disruptions such as floods, heatwaves, or extreme weather events may

delay construction activities.

• Community opposition or social unrest near project sites can impact execution and

stakeholder engagement.

The Company has instituted robust risk management protocols, including regular 

monitoring, contingency planning, and compliance audits, to mitigate these risks.  

8.       INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statement across the organization. The same is subject to review periodically by the internal 
audit cell for its effectiveness. During the period, such controls were tested and no reportable 
material weaknesses in the construction and maintenance of motorways, streets, roads. The 
Statutory Auditors of the Company also test the effectiveness of Internal Financial Controls in 
accordance with the requisite standards prescribed by ICAI. Their expressed opinion forms 
part of the Independent Auditor’s report. 

Internal Financial Controls are an integrated part of the risk management process, addressing 
financial and financial reporting risks. The internal financial controls have been documented, 
digitized and embedded in the business processes. 

Assurance on the effectiveness of internal financial controls is obtained through management 
reviews, control self-assessment, continuous monitoring by functional experts. We believe 
that these systems provide reasonable assurance that our internal financial controls are 
designed effectively and are operating as intended. 

During the period, no reportable material weakness was observed. 

9. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

Reserves and Surplus: The Reserve and Surplus of Company is Rs. 277.44 Lakhs as on period 
ended on 31st March, 2025.  

Total Income: The Company has earned total income Rs. 10,891.26 Lakhs as on period ended 
on 31st March, 2025. 

10. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCE / INDUSTRIAL

RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES EMPLOYED:
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Your Company follows a policy of building strong teams of talented professionals. People 
remain the most valuable asset of your Company.  
Your directors would like to place on record their appreciation of the commitment and 
efficient services rendered by all employees of the Company. The industrial relations 
continued to remain cordial during the period. Employees being a key factor, the Company 
encourages employees for continuous learning by conducting periodical training 
programmes throughout the period. 

11. DETAILS OF KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED

EXPLANATIONS THEREFORE:

The key financial ratios are as below: 

Particulars As at 31st March, 
2025 

*change in the ratio by more
than 25%  as compared to 
the preceding year 

Debtors Turnover 17.37 No 

Inventory Turnover 79.44 No 

Interest Coverage Ratio 5.36 No 

Current Ratio 0.77 No 

Debt Equity Ratio 4.16 No 

Operating Profit Margin 10.69 No 

Net Profit Margin 0.03 No 

Return on Net Worth 0.15 No 

*Your company converted from firm i.e. M/s Integrity Infrabuild to Public Company as on
June 01, 2024 and hence previous year this key financial year ration was not applicable. 

12. DETAILS OF ANY CHANGES IN RETURN ON NET WORTH AS COMPARED

TO IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR ALONG WITH A DETAILED

EXPLANATION THEREOF:

The Return on Net Worth for F.Y. 2024-25 was 47.23%.The Company is in the growth phase 
and therefore the Company has incurred substantial expenses towards the business growth 
and for the purpose of fund raising by getting listed on the SME Platform of NSE. 

For and on behalf of the Board
Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited 

Sd/-                   Sd/- 
 Keyurkumar Sheth      Disha Keyurkumar Sheth 
Managing Director         Whole Time Director 
(DIN: 02678042)       (DIN: 09063221) 

Place: Vadodara 
Dated: 27th September, 2025  
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited  

Regd.Off: Office No - 02 Indiabulls, Mega Mall, 

Jetalpur Road, Akota,  

Vadodara, Gujarat, India, 390020 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited 

(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 

opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information, management representations 

provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives and based on the draft 

independent auditors report during the conduct of the Secretarial Audit, the explanations and 

clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management, We hereby report that 

in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 

March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 

has proper board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company as per Annexure I for the period ended on March 31, 2025 according 

to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings; 

(iv) The Company was a Unlisted Public company and the same is not listed on any Stock 

Exchange in India hence the following Acts, Regulations, Guidelines etc. was not applicable 

to the Company as on period ended March 31, 2025: 

a. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,

2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
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a. Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat

Equity) Regulations, 2014;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2008;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,

2009;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; (SEBI LODR) and

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,

2018;

(v) We further report that having regard to the compliance management system prevailing in 

the Company relating to product laws, manufacturing laws and safety laws, upon examination 

of the relevant documents and records on test-check basis, we report that the Company has 

adequate compliance management system. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

We further report that, 

Based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company, Company 

Secretary in our opinion, adequate systems and processes exist in the Company to monitor and 

ensure compliance with provisions of applicable general laws. 

We further report that, 

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax laws and 

maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this Audit since 

the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated 

professionals. 

As informed by the company the industry specific laws/general laws as applicable to the company 

has been complied with. The management has also represented and confirmed that all the laws, 

rules, regulations, orders, standards and guidelines as are specifically applicable to the Company. 

We have relied on the representations made by the Company and its officers for systems and 

mechanisms formed by the Company for compliances under other laws and regulations applicable 

to the Company.  

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. There were no changes in the 

composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review. All actions were carried out 

in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or on shorter notice with necessary prior 

approval, whenever applicable, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 

and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 

meeting. 

Majority decisions of the Board and committee meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded 

in the minutes of the meeting of the board of directors or committees thereof as the case may be. 

There were no dissenting views of any member of the Board or committees thereof during the 

period under review. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that 

The members may note that during the audit period, following specific events / actions were 

occurred; 

1. The Company was originally formed as a Partnership Firm. Subsequently, the Company was

converted from a Partnership Firm to a Limited company under Chapter XXI of the Companies

Act, 2013 with the name and style of ―Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited‖ and received a

Certificate of Incorporation from the Registrar of Companies, Central Registration Centre dated

June 01, 2024.

2. Mr. Nikhil Malpani is appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director in the Extra-Ordinary

General Meeting held on 26th June, 2024 for a tenure of five years, w.e.f. 26th June, 2024, till

June 25, 2029.

3. Mr. Shivam Dhananjay Dave is appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director in the Extra-

Ordinary General Meeting held on 28th June, 2024 for a tenure of five years, w.e.f June 28,

2024 and till June 27, 2029.

4. Mr. Rajendrakumar Natvarlal Sheth is appointed as Non-Executive Director in the Extra-

Ordinary General Meeting held on 26th June, 2024 for a tenure of five years, w.e.f. 26th June,

2024, till June 25, 2029.

5. Mr. Keyurkumar Sheth has been redesignated from Director to Managing Director of the

Company, with effect from June 26, 2024, for a tenure of five years, commencing on June 26,

2024 and concluding on June 25, 2029.

6. Mrs. Disha Keyurkumar Sheth has been redesignated from Director to Whole Time Director

with effect from 26th June, 2024 for a tenure of five years, commencing June 26, 2024 and

concluding on June 25, 2029.

7. Mrs. Disha Keyurkumar Sheth is appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 28th   June, 2024

8. Mrs. Krupa Jagdish Dholakia is appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f.

11th July, 2024.
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9. The company allotted 12,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 100/- per Equity

Share (including a share premium of Rs. 90/- per Equity Share) on May 16, 2025, these shares

were issued pursuant to the Initial Public Offering ("IPO") of Integrity Infrabuid Limited (“

the Company”) which was open for subscription from May 13, 2025 to May 15, 2025. These

equity shares have been admitted to dealings and are listed on the NSE EMERGE SME Platform

with effect from May 20, 2025.

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 27th September, 2025 

UDIN: A070970G001367421 

Peer Review No. 6167/2024 

FRN No. L2024MH017500 

For JNG & Co. LLP, 

Darshana Mitul Narsana 

Partner 

FCS: 70970 

C.P. No. 27604  

Note: 

1.As of the period ended March 31, 2025, the Company was Unlisted Limited Company. The

Company’s equity shares have been admitted to dealings and are listed on the NSE EMERGE 

SME Platform with effect from May 20, 2025 i.e. end of the March 31, 2025. In line with the 

good governance commitment, issuing this report. 

2.We have verified the data, information, documents in accordance with the applicable rules,

provisions as applicable under the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any. 

3.This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure II and

forms an integral part of this report. 
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ANNEXURE - I 

List of documents verified 

1. Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company.

2. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and various committees whatever applicable,

held during the period under report.

3. Minutes of General Body Meetings held during the period under report.

4. Statutory Registers/Records under the Companies Act and rules made there under

5. Agenda papers submitted to all the directors / members for the Board Meetings and Committee

Meetings.

6. Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of 184 of

the Companies Act, 2013.

7. E-Forms filed by the Company, from time-to-time, under applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and attachments thereof during the period under report, with or without

additional fees.

8. Various policies framed by the company from time to time as required under the statutes

applicable to the company.

9. Processes and procedure followed for Compliance Management System for applicable laws to

the Company

10. Various policies framed by the company from time to time as required under the Companies

Act.
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ANNEXURE - II 

To, 

The Members, 

Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited  

Regd.Off: Office No - 02 Indiabulls, Mega Mall, 

Jetalpur Road, Akota,  

Vadodara, Gujarat, India, 390020 

Sub: Secretarial Audit Report for the period ended on 31st March, 2025 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on Our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

3. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial

records. We believe that the processes and practices, We followed provide a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

Accounts of the company.

5. Wherever required, We have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

6. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,

standards is the responsibility of management, and our examination was limited to the

verification of procedures on test basis.

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of

the company.

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 27th September, 2025 

UDIN: A070970G001367421 

Peer Review No. 6167/2024 

FRN No. L2024MH017500 

For JNG & Co. LLP, 

Darshana Mitul Narsana 

Partner 

FCS: 70970 

C.P. No. 27604  
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Annexure-III 

Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014.  

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the

employees of the Company for the financial year 2024-25:

(Amounts in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director / Key 
Managerial Person (KMP) 
and Designation 

Remuneration/Setting 
Fees paid to 
Directors/KMP 

Ratio of remuneration 
of each Director/KMP to 
median remuneration of 
employees 

1 Keyurkumar Sheth-
Chairman & Managing 
Director 

Rs. 62.22 75.18 

2 Rajendrakumar Natvarlal 
Sheth-Non Exective-Non 
Independent Director 

Rs. 24.98 30.12 

3 Disha Keyurkumar Sheth-
Whole-time director, CFO 

Rs. 8.98 12.15 

4 Nikhil Malpani-
Independent Director 

N.A. NA 

5 Shivam Dhananjay Dave- 
Independent Director 

N.A. NA 

6 Krupa Jagdish Dholakia- 
Company Secretary 

Rs. 2.17 3.21 

Note- Non-Executive Directors were only paid sitting fees for the Board and Committee 

meetings attended by them and therefore the percentage increase in their remuneration is Not 

Applicable 

2. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees of the Company

in the financial year:

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees of the Company is not 

applicable as the company is converted from partnership firm to company w.e.f June 01, 2024. 

Consequently, comparative data for the full financial year is not available. 

3. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company:

As on March 31, 2025, there were 53 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company. 

4. Average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees other than

managerial personnel in the last financial year;

Average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees other than managerial 

personnel is not applicable as the company is converted from partnership firm to company 

w.e.f June 01, 2024. Consequently, comparative data for the full financial year is not available. 

48



5. Average percentile increases/(decrease) in the managerial remuneration in the last

financial year;

Average percentile increases/(decrease) in the managerial remuneration in the last financial 

year  is not applicable as the company is converted from partnership firm to company w.e.f 

June 01, 2024. Consequently, comparative data for the full financial year is not available. 

6. It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the

Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited 

Sd/-                   Sd/- 
 Keyurkumar Sheth      Disha Keyurkumar Sheth 
Managing Director         Whole Time Director 
(DIN: 02678042)            (DIN: 09063221) 

Place: Vadodara 
Dated: 27th September, 2025  
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the  

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To,  

The Members of,  

INTEGRITY INFRABUILD DEVELOPERS LIMITED 

Office No -02 Indiabulls, Mega Mall,  

Jetalpur Road, Akota, Vadodara,  

Gujarat -390020. 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 

Directors of Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited having CIN: U42101GJ2024PLC152080 

hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) produced before me by the Company for the purpose of 

issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub 

clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary 

and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the 

Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 

2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 

Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any 

such other Statutory Authority. 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in the 

Company 

1. 1Nikhil Malpani 09816032 26/06/2024 

2. 2Shivam Dhananjay Dave 10687611 28/06/2024 

3. Keyurkumar Sheth 02678042 01/06/2024 

4. Rajendrakumar Natvarlal 

Sheth 

09063220 01/06/2024 

5. Disha Keyurkumar Sheth 09063221 01/06/2024 

Dates of Appointment of Directors as stated above are based on information appearing on the MCA 

portal. 

Ensuring the eligibility of / for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

1 Mr. Nikhil Malpani (DIN: 09816032) was appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. June 

26, 2024.  

2 Mr. Shivam Dhananjay Dave (DIN: 10687611) was appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director 

w.e.f. June 28, 2024.  
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Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 

of the Company. 

Note: 

1.As of the period ended March 31, 2025, the Company was Unlisted Limited Company. The

Company’s equity shares have been admitted to dealings and are listed on the NSE EMERGE SME 

Platform with effect from May 20, 2025 i.e. end of the March 31, 2025. In line with the good 

governance commitment, issuing this Certificate. 

2.We have verified the data, information, documents in accordance with the applicable rules,

provisions as applicable under the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 27th September, 2025 

UDIN: A070970G001367474 

Peer Review No. 6167/2024 

FRN No. L2024MH017500 

For JNG & Co. LLP, 

Darshana Mitul Narsana 

Partner 

FCS: 70970 

C.P. No. 27604 
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ANNEXURE – V 

Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)  

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

There were no contracts, arrangements or transactions entered during the period ended 
March 31, 2025 which are not at arm’s length basis. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature 
of relationship: 

Vrundavan Stone Industries (Entities in 
which KMP have significant influence) 

(b) Nature of Contracts / arrangements / 
transactions: 

Purchase of Goods 

(c) Duration of the contracts / 
arrangements/transactions: 

2024-25 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including the 
value, if any: 

Rs. 90.93 Lakhs 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA 

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL 

3. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature 
of relationship: 

Integrity Infrabuild Private Limited 
(Entities in which KMP have significant 
influence) 

(b) Nature of Contracts / arrangements / 
transactions: 

Purchase of Goods 

(c) Duration of the contracts / 
arrangements/transactions: 

2024-25 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including the 
value, if any: 

Rs. 552.05 Lakhs 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA 

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL 
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4. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature 
of relationship: 

Rinku Traders (Entities in which KMP have 
significant influence) 

(b) Nature of Contracts / arrangements / 
transactions: 

Advance received 

(c) Duration of the contracts / 
arrangements/transactions: 

2024-25 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including the 
value, if any: 

Rs. 13.44 Lakhs 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA 

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL 

For and on behalf of the Board
Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited 

Sd/-                   Sd/- 
 Keyurkumar Sheth                 Disha Keyurkumar Sheth 
Managing Director                 Whole Time Director 
(DIN: 02678042)         (DIN: 09063221) 

Place: Vadodara 
Dated: 27th September,2025 
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O.P. RATHI & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To

The Members of Integrity Infrabuild Developers Limited (formerly known as Integrity
Infrabuild)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of INTEGRIW INFRABUILD
DEVELOPERS LIMITED (FORMALY KNOWN AS INTEGRITY INFRABUITD) (the
"Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Proflt
& loss for the year ended on 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
on 3lst March, 2025. and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements').

In our oplnion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as

amended (the "Act') In the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as

at 31$ March 3L,2025, and its profifl loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Valuation of Work in Progress (WIP)

Note: 1 We draw attention to Note no.13 of the financial statements, which describes that the
company has not maintained detailed records for Work-in-Progress (WIP) amounting to Rs. 50.26
Lakhs, including project-wise information on costs incurred to date and costs yet to be incurred.
In the absence of this information, we are unable to verify the accuracy of the WIP value reflected
in the financial statements or assess its potential impact.

AT

e
o I

o
o

a

9.q

VADODARA I AHMEOABAD I ANAND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

4h Floor, 4h Block, 73
East Avenue, Sarabhai
Campus,
Vadodara - 390 007,
Gujarat,
India
x admin@oprathi.in
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mt O.P RATHI & CO Continuation sheet

Note: 2 Certain Demand Draft and Deposits amounting to Rs. 67.37 Lakhs, grouped under
short-term loans and advances has been issued for testing of material for various projects
in previous years and the company is in process of reconciliation of the same with the
project completed and starting the process of recovery. However, no provision has been
made currently for any amount if remaining unreconciled and non-recoverable.

Our opinion on the Financials Statement is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Companyt Board of Director's Report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's repot thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to repot that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responslbilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Companyt Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 Cthe Act) with respect to preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of financial position, financial performance of the company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance ofadequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accurary and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance

rf Hl

C.A.
oa

o
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs wlll always detect a ma
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misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

o As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: Identify and assess

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control'

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial

controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls,

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on

the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repot to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modiry our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up

to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any signiRcant

deficiencies in internal control that we identiry during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requircments

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Repot) Order, 2020 ('the Order'), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the'Annexure A', a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the book of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards (AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3lst
March 2025, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31st March 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure "B".

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's report in
accordance with the requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act as amended, we report
that Section 197 is applicable to a Public company.

h. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Financial Statements. The Company does not have any pending
litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were material foreseeable losses as at 31st March
2025;

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

d. i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or In any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('Intermediariesl, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company C'Ultimate
Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of th
Ultimate Beneficiarie

O,P RATH I & Co
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(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounG, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ('Funding Parties'"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party Cultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iii) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notlce that has caused them to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any
material misstatement.

e. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention
of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. (8) With respect to
the matter to be included in the Auditors'Repoft under Section 197(16) of the Act,
in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum permissible managerial remuneration
is applicable to a Public limited company.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining iG books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the
Orderl, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

For,
OPRathi&Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 108718W

H/
o

(L

C,

o
a

a Pu"t^'
c A

Place: Vadodara
Date : 306 May, 2025

R.uchi Rathi
Partner
M. No. 122137
UDIN: 251221378I.1HTX82973

AROOA
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Annexure A" to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Repoft on Other Lega! &
Regulatory Requir€ments' of our report of even date to the ftnancial statements
of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025:

(i) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipments.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant and Equipment have
been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals; no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable
properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination ofthe records ofthe Company, there are no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) The Inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year and
in our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. As explained to us, the
discrepancies noticed during physical verification of inventory have been properly dealt
with in books of account.

(iii) The Company has not made investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability partneBhips or other pafties Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3 (iii) (a) to (fl of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

(v)

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (I) of section 148 of the Compani
2013, is not applicable in view of rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records an
Amendment Rules, 2014,

o
o
t

o
a

c.A

(B) The company does not have any intangible assets.

The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Acq 2013. Accordingly.
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, there are no dues In respect of income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, goods and service tax and value
added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, prevlously unrecorded as income in the books of accoun!, in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the Company, we repoft that no funds raised on short term basis
have been used for long term purposes by the company.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company
has not taken any fund from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligation
of its subsidiaries or joint venture. Accordingly, sub-clauses (e) of clause 3 (ix) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(D In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has no subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence, the provision of clause
3(xi)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made any p rER

id

\\
\

/
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, pa

\: C. c

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees'
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According
to the information and explanation given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues
as on 31st of March, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the
purposes for which they were obtained.

(x) (a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.
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optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the book and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the
company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints had been received by the company.

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 1BB of
Companies Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal
audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of
the Companies Act 2013. Hence the provisions of clause 3(xiv)(a) & (b) of the Order is
not applicable.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA ofthe
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (wi) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not conducted any NBFC or Housing Finance Activities. Hence, the
provision of clause 3 (xviXb) of the Order is not applicable,

Based on our examination of the books of accounts and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has no incurred cash losses in the financial
year ended March 31, 2025, and immediately preceding financial year ended

a
a

o
oo.

o

C.A

(wii)

2024.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by RBI.
Hence, the provision of clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by RBL
Hence, the provision of clause 3 (wiXd) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xviii)

(xix)

(xxi)

Placer vadodara
Date : 30h May, 2025

During the financial year, there has not been any resignation of statutory auditors.
Hence, the provision of clause 3(wiii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material unceftainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilitles existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability oF the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liablllties falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, there is no any unspent amount in terms of second proviso to sub-section
(5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the provision of clause 3 (tu) (a)
(b) are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company is not required to prepare consolidated flnancial statements.
Hence, the provision of clause 3()od) of the Order is not applicable.

For,
O P Rathi &Co.
Chadered Accountants
FRN No. 108718W

\rAI l, (
q.

o o
o

( R l;
Ruchi Rathi
Partnel
M. No. 122137
U DIN : 251221 37 BVIHTXB29T 3

BARO0a

(xx)
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Annexure'B'

Report on Internal Fanancaal Controls with reference to financial statements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of INTEGRIW
INFRABUITD DEVELOPERS LTMTTED (FORMALY KNOWN AS TNTEGRTTY
INFRABUITD) (the "Company"), as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Manaoement's Responsibilitv For Internal Financial Controls

The Companyt management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Resoonsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Notef and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

'c.

o

C.A:
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o
o

H

Reoort on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143

of the Companies Act. 2013 C'the Act")
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system

over fi nancial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
repoting includes those policies and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2, provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors ofthe company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have

a material effect on the financial statements.

h n Lim ons of In

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial repoding to future periods

are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the deg
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ree of compliance with the

q.

d
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequary of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial contro{s over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the flnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Place: Vadodara
Date : 30th May, 2025

Ooinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respectsr an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,2025, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Repoting issued by the Institute of Chaftered Accountants of India.

For,
OPRathi&Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRil No. 108718W

Ruchi Rathi
Partner
M. No. 122137
U DIN r 251 22 1 37 BuHTXB297 3

AROO
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INTEGRITY INFRABUILD DEVELOPERS LIMITED

IPreviously Known as Integrity Infrabuild)
OFFICE NO - 02 Indiabulls Megamall, fetalpur Road, Akota, Vadodara- 390020, Guiarat

CIN : U42 10 1G|ZOZ 4PLC152080
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

Note
No-

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024Particulars

310.00

277.44
310.00

sa7.44 310.00

749.16 762.60

749.16 762.60

54L.28
1,765.64

531,14
1,23+.50

147.82

559.65

4+L.27
488.80
t7L.06
3t7.74
86.79
62.67

2
)
3

4

5

6

7

8

9

6
3,014.39 t,079.47

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's funds
Share Capital
Partner's Capital
Reserves and surplus

Current liabllitles
Short-term borrowings
Trade payables

[A] Due to Micro and small enterprises
(Bl Due to other than Micro and small enterprises
0ther current liabilities
Short-term provisions

Non-current Iiabilitles
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax liabiliries INet)
Long-term provisions

4.3 S0.99 2,tsz.o7TOTAL

2,0t8.28
1.18

23.38

1,043.91

1.18

1,045.092,O42.44

74.t6
47.L2

362.35
457.20

222.t+

50.26
260.39
261.70
93+.97
800.83

r,L06.97

13

74

15

tz
t6

10

11

5

72

2,308.L4

TI, ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and lntangible assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
Non-current investments
Deferred tax assets (net)

Long-term loans and advances

other non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Short Term Loans & Advances

Other current assets

2.752.064.3 50.99TOTAL

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes To The
Accounts
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe
financial statements.
As per our report of even date

FoTOPRATHI&Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 108718WJ

For and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors
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xelr Raiendra ShethRUCHI RATHI

Partner

Place: Vadodara
Date: 30th May 2025

DEVELOPERS LIMITED

I ,K

Disha Keyur Sheth

Whole-time director & Chief
Financial Officer
DIN:09063221Membership No.:122137

uDrN: 25 l-11r 3+Bl{Wrr 82q13

Managing Director

DIN: 02678042

Krupa Dholakia
Company Secretary
PAN No: AUOPD4929M
Mem No: A70695

Place: Vadodara
Date: 30th May 2025

N..1.yro\oP*VAOODARA
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INTEGRITY INFRABUILD DEVELOPERS LIMITED
(Previously Known as Integrity Infrabuild)

OFFICE NO - 02 Indiabulls Megamall, Jetalpur Road, Akota, vadodara- 390020, Guiarat
CIN : U42 10 1G|2O24PLCL5208O

Statement ofProfit & Loss as on 3lst March 2025

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes To The Accounts
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

FoTOPRATHI&Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 108718WJ

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
DEVELOPERS LIMITED

b,l-
INTEGRITY IIqS\BUILD

c\5-
L.\

s-.

ln

9,Y
Keyur Sheth

Whole-time director &
Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 09063221

1to30

t

Membership No,: 122137
uDrN:25122131 B|rHtX gL17?

RUCHI RATHI

Partner

Place: Vadodara
Date: 30th May 2O25

K.1 'Ptnc\d"; c't

Keyur Raiendra Shetlt

Managlng Director

DIN: 02678042

Krupa Dholakia
Company Secretary
PAN No: AUOPD4929M
Mem No: A70695

PIace: Vadodara
Date; 30th May 2025

As at 31st March 2025 31st March 2024Note
No.

Particulars

10.870.38 6,447.02
6,447.O2

13.80
10,870.38

20.88
6,460.8210,a97.26

2,738.92
(4.40)

3,222.68
56.68
53.37

148.81
7t.64

5,012.07
(3s.73)

4,737.24
777.97
115.69
379.22
t32.Lg

6,287.69r0,stz.65
173.t2374.6r

t73.t2374.6L

173.L2378.6t

124.56
-23.38

6t.32

277.44 111.80

L7

18

19

20

27

22

23

24
25

26

27
8.95

8.95

8.95
8.9s

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Net Sales

0ther income
Total Income
Expenses

Cost of material Consumed

Changes in inventories
other Direct & Manufacturing Expenses

Employee benefi t expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before excepdonal, extraordinary and prior period items and tax

Exceptional items
Profit before extraordinary and prior period items and tax

Extraordinary items
Prior period item

Profit before tax
Tax expenses

Current tax
Deferred tax
Excess/short provision relating earlier year tax

Profit(Loss) for the period
Earning per share in Rs.

Basic
Before extraordinary Items
After extraordinary Adjustment

Diluted
Before extraordinary Items
After extraordinary Adj ustment

Roor
a'

a
o

H'

c )
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(Previously Knom as Integrity lnfrabuild)
OFFIcE No - 02 Indiabulls Megamall, Jetalpur Road, Akota, vadodara'390020, Guiarat

CIN : U42 101Gf 20?4PLCIS?OAO
Cash Flow statement as on 31st March 2o25

ln
Particulars 31st March Zo25 3 1st March 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before Extraordinary items
Adiustment For:

[a) Depreciation and Amortization

[b) lnterest Charges
(cJ (Gain)/Los on sale of Asts
[d) Other non cash items
(dJ Interest & Other income
(d) Interest Received

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

Adjustment For :

(a) (lncrease)/Decrease in I nventories

[b) flncrease)/Decrease in Trade Receivab]es
(cJ (lncrease)/Decrease in Loans & Advances & Other

Assets

[d) (lncrease)/Decrease in Other Assets
(e) lncrease /(Decrease) in Trade Payables & Other

Liabilities

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Less : Direct Taxes paid

CASH FLOW BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

NET CASH FROM OPERATINC ACTIVITIES (A)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(a) Sales / fAddition) in Fixed Assets & WIP
(b) (lncrease) / Decrease in Long Term Loans Advances

(c) (lncrease) / Decrease in lnvestment
(d) 0ncrease ) / Decrease in Non Current Assets
(eJ lnterest Received

(0 Profit on sale ofassets
NET CASH PROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

lc. c,esu rLow rnoM FINANctNG AcrtyITIEs

| 
(a) Increase/[necrease) in Long Term Borrowings

I

| 
(b) lncrease/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings

(c) Increase/(Decrease) in Partner's Capital
(d) lnterest Paid

(e) Othm Non Current Liabilities
NET CASH PROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES [C)

NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

(A)+[B]+(c )
OPENINC BALANCE - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

CLOSING BALANCE - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

374.67

379.22
115.69

(-17.7e)

855.73

773.72

148.81
53.37

(73.62)
361.68

[32.10]
(273.27)
(477.77)

\434.92

Is.04)
(6.s21

22.54

(27.41'l
(184.40)

t,967.57

724.56

150.85

61.32

r,a42.9l 99.S3

1,842.95 99.53

[1,353.50]

0.00

Is78.5e)
77.79

(s3s.ss)

(0.01)

1,3.62

(7.914.491 [szt.94)

(13.44)

100.01

(115.69J

255.37

426.77

(4e.66)

Is3.37]

(z9.tzl 579.17

(100.66)

362.35
156.70

2o5.65
26t.69 362.35

Signilicant Accounting Policies & Notes To The
Accounts
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

1to 30

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectorsFoTOPRATHI&Co.
Chartered
(FRN: 108718W)

RUCHI RATHI

Partner

Membership No.: 122137

uDrN,25l22t31E lt*r

Place: Vadodara
Date:30th May 2025

INTEGRJTY INFhf,BUILD

.s5"
o<e\F\

Kelur Ralendra Sheth

DEVELOPERS LIMITED

9,F
-rr {.lL'

Milaging Director

DIN: 02678042

Krupa Dholakia
Company Secretary
PAN No: AUOPD4929M
Mem No: A70695

Place: Vadodara
Date:3oth May 2025

Sheth

Whole-time director & Chief Financial
Officer
DIN; 09063221

\<' 1' Dtr,rhle"'q
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Note no. 1 SIcNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS I

A. Corporate Information:
INTEGRITY INFRABUILD DEVELoPERS LIMITED ('the Company'J is a company domiciled in lndia and incorporated/ Converted under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company was previously operated as Partnership Firm in the name of "lntegrity Infrabuild" which was converted int! private Iimited company with effectfrcm0l/06/2024
under Companies Act, 2013

TheregisteredomceoftheCompanyislocatedatofficeNo-02lndiabultsMegamall,letalpurRoad,Akota,Vadodara-390020,GujaraL TheCompanyisinthebusinessof
Conskuction and Maintenance of lnfrastructure Proiects such as Roads, Bridges and Buildings.

B. Significant Accounting Policies

1. Basisofaccountingr-

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in lndia 0ndian GAAP) including the Accounting Standards

notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Schedule Ill oft}te Acr
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventlon on accrual basis.

2. Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lndian GAAP requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adiustment to the carrying

amounts ofassets or liabilities in future periods,

3. Revenue Recognition: -

Revenue from construction contracts is recognized using the Percentage of Completion Method (POCM), based on the cost incurred to total estimated cost. Contract revenue

includes variations, claims, and incentives when reliably measurable.

as a liability.

lnteffit in@me is @gn ized on a time prcportion basis t kio6 into a@unt the amount outst,.rding and fhe intcHtrote applicable. Nl other incomc and expenditure are

recognized and accounted for on accrual basis,

Insurance claims are recognized as income only when t}lere is reasonable certainty of realization

4. Property, Plant & Equipment & lntangible assets: :-

Property, Plant & Equlpment I

Freehold land is carried at historical cosL All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated

any. Any trade discount or rebate is deducted in arriving at the purchase Price

useful life. Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

or losses are recognized in the statement oI profit and loss. Property, plant and equipment to be disposed ofare reported at the lower ofthe carrying value or the fair value less

cost ofdisposal.

Where an item ofproperty, plant and equipment comprises major components having different useful lives, these componenLs are accounted for as separate items.

5. Depreclatlon r
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent ofdepreciable amount on the Written dom Value [WDV) Method. Depreciation is Provided based on useful life ofthe asses

as prescribed in Schedule ll to the Companies Act, 2013.

The useful lives estimated by the management are mentioned below:

Motor Vehicles

Furniture and fixtures
Electrical fitting and fixing
Computer and related equipment
Office Equipment
Building

8 Years

10 Years

1.0 Years

3 Years

5 Years

30 Years

VADODARA
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General PIant & Machineries and PIant and Machinery related to road making have been depreciated over a period of 15 years and 12 years respectively which is the economic
useful life ofthose machineries as per managemenL

All fixed assets individually costing Rs, 5000/- or less are fully depreciated in the year of installation/purchase.

The useful Iives are reviewed by the management periodlcally and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the revised

statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal.

Depreciation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognized on a pro-rata basis to the statement of profit and loss till the date of acquisition,/sale.

wherever the carring amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amounL The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. ln assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows ar€ discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risk specific to the asset

After impairmen! depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount ofthe asset over its remaining useful life.

7. Investmentsr

Current invesurents are @rried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at

cosL However, provision for diminutions in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value ofthe invesorents,

On disposal of an inveshnent, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

8. Inventories:-

Cost ofinventories comprises all costs ofpurchase, costs ofconvesion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condidon,

Work-in-Progress (WIPJ are valued on the basis o[ Percenage of completion certifed by Project Engineer. Cost includes direct materials, labour, site expenses, attributable
overheads, and bonowiDg c6Li {if .pplieble)

9. Borowingcostl

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign

currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cosl

capitalized. All other borrcwing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

10, Retirement Benefi ts:-

a) Short Tem Obllgations
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the serice are classified as short-t€rm employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which

the employee rendere the related seryice. The Company recognizes t}le undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services

rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

b) Post-Employment Benefi ts
i) Defined benefit plan Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and recognized based on actuarial valuation carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

ii) Defined contribution plan A Defined Contribution Plan is plan under which the Company makes contribution to Employee's Provident Fund administrated by the Central

Government. The Companyt conm'bution s chargedto the statement ofprolit and loss

11, Tiles on lncome:-
The accounting treatment for the income tax in respect of the Company's ilcome is based on the Accounting Standard on 'Accounting for Taxes on lncome' [AS-22). The provision

made for income tax in accounts comprises both, current tax and deferred tax.

Act,1961.

The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for, using the tax rates and laws that have been substantively enacted by the

infuture.AteachBalanceSheetdate,thecarryingamountofdeferredtaxisreviewed andconsequentialadiusEnentsarecarriedout

VADODARA
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12. Provisions, and Contingent Assets:- (AS-29)

Provisions are only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a reliable estimate of the amount of tie obligation can be made.

is disclosed in Notes to t}Ie account for:-

[i) Possible which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the conrol of the company or

ofthe obligation cannotbe made.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statement since t}Iis may result in the recognition of the income that may never be realized.

13. Events after Reporting dater

Standalone Financial Statements. Othemise, events after the Balance Sheet date ofmaterial size or nature are only disclosed.

14. Eamings per Sharel

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing t}re net profit or loss [attributable to omers oft]re Company) for the period (after deducting preference dividends and

attributable taxesl by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the period.

For the purpose calculadng Diluted Earnlngs per share, the net proftt or loss for the perlod anrlbutable to equlty shareholders and the welghted average number ofshares

outstanding during the period are adjust€d for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

15. General:
Exceptwherever stated, accounting policies are consistent with the generally accepted acmunting principles and have been consistently applied.

16. Leases:

Leasearangementswhererisksandrewardsincidentalt ownershipofanassetsubstantiallyvestwiththelessorarerecognizedasoperatinglease.Leaserentalsunder
operating leases are recognized in the statement of profit & loss on a siraight-line basis.

17. C8h & ash equlvalents:
Cash and ash equiwlentsomprises ash-in-hand, curcnta@untr,6xd deposiet vrth hanl6. Cash eguiElenBareshort-Bm balanes (with an original maturityof three

montis or Iess from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments tlat are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insiSnificant risk of

changes in value. Other bank balances are short-term balance I with original maturity is more than three months but less than twelve monthsJ.

17. Cdh Row Statement
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'lndirect Method' as set out in the AccountinB Standard (AS) 3 " Cash Flow Statement" prescribed under tie Companies

(Accounting StandardsJ Rules, 2005.
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As at 3lst March 2025 As at 31st March 2024Particulars

450

310

310

310

Authorlsed:
4500000 (3L/L2/2024:NA*) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- Face value
Issued:
3100000 (3L/72/2024:NA*) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- Face value
Subscrlbed and pald-up :

3100000 (3L/L2/2024:NA*) Equiry shares ofRs, 10,00/- Face value

Partner's Capital Account

310 310Total

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note No.2 Share ln

NA* : The company has been converted from partnership firm to Limited Company U/s 366 ofthe companies act hence there is no comparative figures of

Authorised, Issued and Paid up capital.

Right, preferences and restrlcdons attached to shares

For all matters submitted to vote in a shareholders meeting ofthe Company every holder ofan equity share as reflected in the records ofthe Company on the date of

the shareholders meeting shall have one vote in respect of each share held. Any dividend declared by the company shall be pald to each holder of Equity shares in

proportion to the number ofshares held to total equity shares outstanding as on that date. In tle event ofliquidation ofthe Company all preferential amounts ifany
shall be discharged by the Company. The remaining assets ofthe Company shall be distributed to the holders ofequity shares in proportion to the number ofshares

held to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date.

Reconciliauon of the Shares outstanding at the beglnning and at the end of the reporung perlod
shares

Details ofshareholders holding more than 5olo shares in the company

Details of shares held

At tlle beginning of the period
Issued during the Period
Redeemed or bouqht back during the period

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

31,00,000 3,10,00,000

Outstandlng at end of the perlod 31,00,000 3,10.00,000

Tvoe of Share Name ofShareholders As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. of Shares
o/o of

Holdlns
No. of shares

o/o ol
Holdlns

Equity 10. 1

[NV:10.00 ]

Keyur Sheth

Disha Sheth

Raiendra Sheth

20,26,780
2,79,A06
7,93290

65.38 0

9,026 0

25.59 0

Total : 30,99,476 99.996 o

Current Year

Shares at beglnning Shares at end
o/o

Chanse

Promoter name Particulars Number o/o Number o/o

Keyur Sheth Equity NV: 10.00 20,26,780 65.38 100

Disha Sheth Equity NV: 10.00 2,79,806 9.03 100

Raiendra Sheth 10.00 7,93,290 25.59 100

Total 30,99,476

q
o

C.A
O
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As at 31st March 2024Particulars As at 31st March 2025

surplus
Opening Balance

Addr Profit for the year
alndnq Relrnce

277.44
277.44

Note No. 3 Reseryes and surplus

Note No. 4

As at 3 1st March 2025 As at

Paftic{laE Non- Currenl C[ffit
Maturitles

Total Non- Cunent
coma

Matutltl€s Total

Tem Loan - From banks
Term l.oan { Referthe Note.A) 4SS_62 547.28 996.90 483.68 441.27 924.55

455.62 541.24 996.90 483.68 441.27 924.95

Tem Loan - From Others

455.62 s47.ZA 996.90 443.64 441.27 924.91

Loans ad ad%nces from related partles

l.oans directors Unsecured 293 54 256.92

22.00

Above Amount Ircludes
Borrowings

Borrowings
Disclosed Under the Head "Short Term

Borrowings"(Note No. 7)

455.62 483.58
293.54 274.92

5+t.2A 441.27

Net Amount 1.290.+1 1 .203.47

from Others

Note :A Detalls of lffn ls as underi
i. Terms loan is Primarily secured against Plant and Machlnery.

ii. Collateral se@rity of above term loans is againstpersonal Cuarantees of Directors

b. Tem of RepayDent of Loan
i. Total5TermLoantakeniromHDFCBANKintheF.Y,2024-25@9.03%intErestpayableandthe instalment of loan will be repayable in 37 instalments

of Rs.1,77,850/-per montheach loanincluding interesthavingoutstandingbalanceason 31/03/2025ofRs 179.74Lakhs.

ii. Total 10 Term Loan taken from Axis Bank in the F,Y. 2024-2 5 @ 1 1.000/6 interest payable and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 25 instalments

of Rs. 1,81,070/- per month each loan lncluding interest having outstanding amount as on 3 1 /03/2 02 5 of Rs. 105.13 Lakhs.

iii. Term Loan taken from lohn Dheere (NBFC) in the F.Y. 2024-25 @8.56% interest payable and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 26 lnstalments

of Rs. 2,33,000/- per month includlng interest havlng outstandlnS balance as on 31/03/2025 ofRs 41.02 Lakhs.

iv. Total 4 Term Loan taken from Case New Holland (CNH) in the F.y.2022-23 @A.44oh lnterest payable and the instalment of l@n will be repayable in 35

instatments of Rs. 92,700/- per month each loan including interest having outstandirg amount as on 3 1/03/202 5 of Rs 38.47 Lakhs

v, TotalSTermLoantakenfromHDFCBANKintheF.Y.2024-25@9,310/6interestpayableandthe instalment ofloan wlll be repayable in 37 lnstalments

of Rs. 1,47,610/. per monti each loan includlnB interest having outstanding balance as on 3 1/03/202 5 of Rs. 173.1 8 Lakhs

vi. Totat S Term Loan taken frcm HDFC BANK in the F.Y, 2024-25 @9.310/6 intErest payable and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 37 instalments

of Rs, 1 5,9 10/- per month each loatr including interest having outstanditrg bala nce as on 3l /03 12025 of Rs 18,66 Lakhs.

vii. Total 3 Term Loan taken from HDFC BANK in the F.Y. 2024-25 @9.01% interest payable and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 37 instalments

of Rs. 1,42,750/- per month each loan including interest having outstanding balance as on 3 1/03/202 5 of Rs. 7 5.55 l,akhs.

viii. Total 3 Term Loan taken from HDFC BANK in the F,Y. 2024-25 @9.01% lnterest payable and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 37 lnstalments

of Rs.14,910/- per month each loan includlng inGresthayingoutstanding balanceason 3llO3l2O25 ofRs.7.89 lakhs.

ix. Total 2 Term Loan taken from HDFC BANK in the F.Y. 2024-25 @9.31% interest payable and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 37 instalments

of Rs. 90,465/- per month each loan lncluding interest having outstanding balance as on 3 1 /03,/202 5 of Rs. 42.45 lakhs.

x. Total 3 Term Loan taken from HDFC BANK in the F,Y. 2024-25 @7,410lo interest payable and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 48 instalments

ofRs.97,7SS/-permontheachloanincludinginteresthavingoutstandingbalanceason37/03/2o25ofRs.579Lali'hs Firstinstalmentwillbeduefrom

07/0212025 tot each

xi, Term Loan taken from HDFC BANK ln the F.y.2024-ZS @?.570h interest payable and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 37 instalments of Rs.

7AB3O l - pq month each loan including interest having outstandlng bala \ce as on 37/03 /2025 of Rs 4 50 Lakhs.

xii. TermLoantakenfromHDFCBANKintheF.y.2024-25@7.520/6interestpayableandthe instalment of loan will be repayable ln 3Tinstalments of Rs.

7 4,77o / - per month each loan including intercst having outstanding balance as on 3 1 /03,/202 5 of Rs S.10 Lakhs

xiii. Term Loan taken frcm HDFC BANK in the F.Y. 2024-25 @8.52 % interest payable and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 37 instalments of Rs.

31,575 / - per month each loan including interest having outstanding bala \ce as on 3l I 03 /2025 of Rs. 2.74 Lakhs

xlv. Term Loan taken from HDFC BANK ln the F.Y. 2024-25 @9.04 0/6 interest payable and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 37 instalments of Rs.

t,27,925 I - pet month each loan including interest havitrg outstanditrg balance as on 3 1/03/202 5 of Rs 13.46 Lakhs

ry. Term Loan taken from HDFC BANK in the F.y. 2024-25 @9,33 0/6 interest payable and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 37 instalments of Rs.

4,79,2951-per montheachloan including interesthavingoutstandingbalanceason 31/03/2025ofRs.116.32Lakhs

ryi Total 3 Term Loan taken from HDFC BANK in the F.Y. 2024-25 @9.01 % itrterest payabte and the instalment of loan will be repayable in 37 lnstalments

of Rs. 1,56,79 5/- per month each loan including lnterest havlng outstanding balance as on 37 I 03 l2O2S of Rs. 1 47.90 Lakhs

c. Tem of ReDavment of Unsffed Loan
The Repayment ofthe said deposit/loan is to be made on demand or as mutually agreed'

tr.
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As at 3 1st March 2021 As at 3lst March 2024

233A

tax
on WDV offixed Assets

deferred tax llabllity

tax assets

disallowed U/s.of lT

deferred tax arst
deferred tax assets

tax

A on WDV ofnxed Assets

account of timing difference

Particulars 202s
Long'term Short-term Total Long-term Short-term Total

Other provlslons
Current tax proYision

Provisions for Employees Salary & PF

Provlsion for Expenses

Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Audit Fees

Provision for Director Salary

r24.55 'L24.SS 61.32 61.32

6.72 6.72

340.64 340.64 1.29 t.29

s.55 5.55

3,00 3.00 0.68 0.68

79.tl 79.t8
559.65 559.65 62.61 62.67

Total 559.65 559.65 62.61 62.61

Parti.ulars As at 3 1st March 202 5 at 3 1st March 2024

541.28 441.27

TotAl 54LzA +4t,27

maturities of long-term debt
4

Note No.8
Partlculars lAs at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

(A) Micro enterprises and enterprlses 171.06
317.74

Tot l | 1,765.64 488.80

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as on 31st March 2025
date not deflned due date

Trade Payables Ageing schedule as on 3 1 st March 2024

Particular Less than 1 Yrs. 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Yrs. Total

MSME t7 t.o6 t7 t.o5

Others 308.57 9.77 317.74

DisDuted Dues-MSME

DisDuted- Others

The classification ofcreditors as micro ard small enterprise has been given for the parties from whom the confirmation has been received regarding their classificauon as

per MSMED Act, however the confirmation has not been received from all the parties. Fufther the bifurcation of Micro and Small is not available. ln absence ofsuch

confirmation we have not been able to bifurcate the vendors into Micro & Small as per MSMED AcL lnformation in terms ofsection 22 of Micro, Small and Medium

EDterprises Development Ac! 2005 are given belowj

as

Note No. 9 Other current liabilities

More than 3 Yrs. TohlLess than 1 Yrs. 1-2 Years 2-3 Year!Particular
629.4t629.8tMSME

1,135.8314.50t,t?r.33Others
ted

DisDuted- Others

Amount as on
2

as on 31

o.ool 0.00
0.00o.oo I

o.ool 0.00

o.ool 0.00

0.001 0.00

lnterest paid by the ComPanY ln

lnterest due and payable for the

lnterest accrued and remaining

lnterest amount remaining unPaid
Principal amount remaininE

Amount as on 3 1st
March,2025

Amountas on 31st
March,2024

Particulars

11.86
83.68
52.2A

22.54
64.27

Others payables
SEtutory Dues

Tender Deposits
Deposits from sub contactor

o
o

I
c
o

a
o

c A

HAT

74



u.

ooo
s

o
E
Gi

o

J'

(tr

,s
L
oc
x6
o

Lo
c
Jo
.Fc
6.9
oE.389E<

=EEluoot>6
Goc:
dPL'Xoo
Y?OOy,co
qq-
3;.9

-eo+>trt:68
Niq
m6.g
o @droL
d- 5m: !.?traE
vdL
6AO
6 hE
> 6!
Y 6(tr
3otr
o.!BecL
..!4 qD o
6 H!
5Y^
o! o
6 @a.-)d
trtroo:tr
6:9'i!c

E E.E.qo 9)ouiuoo
oiu v
I v; ..!UU;
L oii! or

. 9{ -E

s 9.X;
r 6r-@OcL>
oct/ E.::hoii

E'E E Ero=o
.=uo+

r er'=
g 5a'r,iis.9
9Pn I-E.!\o tr:trm.g;'4tr:9
co=:,H<.i-:E.z;?3
= 3 Ho i2E;Ef E..EEdE dci o - 9dEX:;E.Ezbjeh,:6 y

-5r[6.c !
Lo.u@o=
PZ=<! B6€,(5rNm &

J

\
Oo
m

m
m
N

h
a?
m

\o @
u'l N

N

q',:i

z

ln
60
oN
6F
or I
OL
E(!s=su

N
N
ci

h

€ ..j
N

@
(j
N
N

co\ €
...1

m

co

+
N

@9
m co

co
d

u)
sN60
oN6r
o9
cGsE
69

(f)

di
sq
b

vl
h
m

N
N
O
h

q t\e 6)

.EEi:
a!.1 i: E iti:9'E >Or-
O E€

!!
N
ry
N

N
N
CN
F-
m

J
+-;

m

h 6i
m N

N m
co

\o
v]ED

L
;i6
!>o..

h
o.

N

..i€
N

ci
@6
+

N

.j

€q co
c4
ui
N6N

(!N

9L
(!d
6e

O\
N

(j
N wio+

\o
Nr N

€

N

N\
N
5\

.i

N
N
J

q
N
N

N
N

ci
\o
N

tB
N

N

L

E

q)

ce

€ rIa
NI
o1

\o
N
N

Nt
|,.
m

ln
U?

v1
m
rn

o4)
.= ao;.=trii

<€

N
N

o\

N
N N

N

N
h
N

F.

N
tn
\o

4

r
@
6

hto q€
o
c?
N
m

0q
m

o\
N
6I\a
+-

5

trl

I

6N

6N

s<
6!

L
l!o

oL
0.

o

x

6
oL

F

o
E
o.

rll
o
E

o

o

!o

E
o(J F

o

0t

F G
J

ts
6

a
o

6
E
!

6

q

!
N

E(
C
E

o

o

6

6

6
o.

I

L

o

o

U

I

6

o.

o
!
6
@

oz

6

o
6
a
L

a
E

Lo

o

o

6
!o
6
!o
o

bDoL
6

I

6

6

o
5
o
o
6

o
6

6
o
o

a

o
3

6
o
o

.9
E

G

l>c6o
Eo
o

It
l"ilo
l>

6

6

6
Lo
6

o

b0o&

o
6
o.

oU
o

o
N
o
L

t-

N
o

d

rn
N

N

(!
z

m
6t

IE

q)

G
a,

EO

6

(!

o

l!

(!

o.

L
EI

o.

z
€)

o2

(

c

3

u

75



TEde Invefr ent(yalued at co$ unles fibd
otheMise)

1.18 1.18

Partic(lars Asat 31st March 2025
Lonq-term Short-term

Lorns and advances to related pardes
U nscured, considered good

Other loansandadvances
DeDosib for Utiities

Loans &Advanceb Oth.E - UnsecuredConsidered 6ood
Tender and Proi6 Dep6is - Ref$ Note

5.50
929.47

9.50

Nob I CerEin Demand Dreft and DeposlB amountlng to Rs.67.37 lakhs has been issued for tesllnS otmaterial for various proreft ln prevlousyears

and the company Is in process ofreconclllatlon ofthe she wlth the projed completed and Mftlngthe process ofrecovery. However, No provlslon
has been made currentlyforanyamount lfremalnlngunreconclled and non recoverable

Note No, 13 lnventori6
rrtlculars As at 31 st March 2OZS As at 31$ Mar.h 2024

(Valued at @$ urlN othemlse sted)
Raw Material(Basis of valuation: At cost)

WIP(gasis of valuationr At @st)

lnvenbriB olhe(Bads of valuation: At @st)[sbck
inueNit: Rs.0.00(66.01)l

50.26

3.63

1d53

Not.: 'The company has not mainhlned dehlled records for Work'in-Progre$ (WlP) amountlnB to Rs. 50.26 lrkhs, includlng prored-wise

lnformatlon on co$ lncurred to daE and cosB yetb be lncurred. In the ab*nce ofthis lnformatlon, we are unable to verify the accuracy ofthe WIP

value refl&d intheflnancial Stemenborassess lB potential lmpac

Note No. 14 Trade.eceivables

Particulars Outshndlng for following periods from due date ofpayment As at 31$ March 2O2S

Less
than 6

6 months - 1

yeaf
1-z years 2-3 years More thah 3

years
ToEl

(i) Undisputed Trade reeivables (considered good) 260.39 260.39

(ii) Undisputed Trade Rffiivables (considered

doubttnll
(iil) DispuEd Trade Rreivabls considered good

(iv) Dirpubi Trade R@ivabl6 considered

'l Prodsion fordoubttul rEeivables

OuMndingfor followlng periods from due date of payment As at 31st [,larch 2024

L6s
than 6

6 months" 1
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

yeas
Tobl

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables [considered Sood) 47.12 47.12

0i) Undisputed Trade Rseivabl6 (@nsld€r€d

doubrtul)

(iia) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

(iv) Disput€d Trade Reeivables considered

(v) Provision for doubdul receivables

No.15 Cashand@sh in hkhs

Note No. 16 Other

As at 31$ March 2025 As at 31n March 2024Paftlculars

47.t2
Secured, Considered qood

Unseured, Considered Good
Doubttul
All.wrn.. for d.uhfnl reEivrhles

260.39

Partlculars A. rr 3 I st Mar.h 2025

25.17

12.26
125.07
222_92

260.33

1.37
t.37

360,25

2.74

Balancrwlth banks
ln CC AccounE
ln CurrentAccounB
ln Fixed DeposiB
ToEI
Cash h hand
cash in hard
Tobl

As at 31* March 2024As at 31$ March 202S

210.03
L2,lL

I to suppliers
with govemment authorities
lnsufance Expense
Revenue

c.A

o
ao

q.

o
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31st March 202431st March 202SParticulars

10,870.38 6,447.02Colrtract Revenue
Other operating revenues

10,870.38 6,4+7.O2Net revenue from operations

Note No. 17 Revenue from o rations (Amount in Lakhs

Note No. 18 Other Income

Note No, 19 Cost ofmaterial consumed [Amount in Lakhs )

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Inventory at the beginning
Add: Purchase
Raw Materiai

Less:-lnventory at the end

3.63 3.00

5,OO8.14 2,739.55

5,008.44 2,739.55
3.63

Total 5,O72.O7 2,734.92

Note : As pea lnformation provided by Managemelt The company does not maintain a central store facility for raw

materlals. Hence, raw mate als are purchased and delivered dlrectly to tie prorect sites, which means there is no

inventory records ofraw materials available wit]r tltem.

31st March 202431st March 2025Particulars

6.9312.99
6.694.80

13.6217.79

0.110.11

o.o72.97Profit from Sale ofAssets

Int€rest IncoIIIe
On Bank Deposits
On Income tax Refund

Dividend lncoIIle
From othcrs

13.802 0.88Total

c.A
a

a

o
o

H

a
C,
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77



31st March 202431st March 2025Particulars

50.26 14.53

so.26 14.53

10.1374.53
10.1314.53

(4.40)Iss.73)
(4.401(35.73)

Inventory at the end ofthe year
Finished Goods
Work-in-Progress

Inventory at the beginning of tlle year
Finished Coods

Work-in -Progress

(lncrease)/decreas€ in inventories
Finished 6oods
Work-in-Progress

Note No.20 Cha s in inventories Amount in Lakhs

Note No, 21 Other Direct & Manufacturing Expenses [Amount in Lakhs

Note No, 22 Employee benefit nses Amount in Lakhs )

Note :

a- No employees ofthe company are covered under section 197( l2) ofthe Companies Acl,20l3 read with Rule 5(2) ofthe

Company Rules 2014

Note No.23 Finance costs (Amount in Lakhs

o o'
u

31st March 2024Particulars
287.26

L3.26
74.5t

789.26
10.55

31.23
37.90
24.54

102.29
1,851.88

597,55
0.35

103.06
1,388,32

35.20
19.60

90.28
2+.84

373,43
2,094.62

Fuel Expense

Freight and Forwarding Charges

Labour Cess

Labour Expense

Site Expense
Tender Fees

Testing Charges

Transportation Expense

Vehicle & MechirerySpare Prrts
Work Contracts

3,222.644,737.24Total

31st March 202431st March 2025Particulars

t7.56
35.00

4.72

70.24
96.81

4.93

5.55
56.68177.57

0.40

Salarles and Wages
Salary and Wages to Employees
Director Remuneration
StaffWelfare Expense

Gratuity

s6.64777.97Total

31st March 202431st March 2025Particulars

39.1186.40
0.44

39.1186,83

3.13
11.13

0.16

28.69

14.26za.a6

Other Borrowing costs
Bank Charges

Bank Commission & Franking Charges

Interest
Paid to Bank & NBFC

Paid to Others

53.3 7115.69Total

CA

q

31st March 2025

Contribution to provident and other fund
Provident Fund Conffibutions

I
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31st March 2024Particulars 31st March 2025

379.22 169.51Depreciation on tangible assets
379.22 169,51Total

Note No.24 D and amortization Amount in Lakhs

in Lakhs

2 tax
Particulars 37st March 2O25 3lst March 2024
Current tax Dertainins to current vear 724.56 6t.32
Total 124.56 6,..32

Note No. Z8 Contlngent Liabillties and Commltments:
the extent not rovided) in Lakhs

Note No.29
In the opinion ofthe management, the current assets, loans & advances have stated on realization in the ordinary course of
business at least equal to the amount at which its are stated in the Statement ofaffairs. All the debit and credit balances stated in

the Balance sheet are subiect to confirmation from the parties.

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

40.00
1.75
3.11

6.95
14.58

0.25
4.10

20.99
0.77
1.25

22.95
1.33

0.97
3.58
2.82
0.80

6.00

2.33

4.28
16.4L

0.46

t9.94

1.5;
2.73

0.75
1L.72
tt.2a
0.24

Audit Fees

Bad Debts
Donation
Electricity Expense
Inauguration Expense
Incorporation Expense
Insurance Expense

Listing Fees

Office Expense

Professional Fees

Property Tax
Rent Expense
Rent Expense for Machinery
RTO Expense

Stamp & Notary Expense

Stationary Expense
Travelling Expense
Website Expense

7,^.64Total t32.t9

31st March 2025Particulars
After ExtraordinarvBefore Extraordinary

2,77,43,594.r4
31,00,000

8.95

2,77,43,594.L4
31,00,000

8.95

10.00

2,77,43,594.t4
31,00,000

8.95

2,77,43,594.74
31,00,000

8.95

10.00

Basic
Profit after tax IAJ
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (BJ

Basic EPS (A / B)

Diluted
Profit after tax (Al
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (B)

Diluted EPS (A / B)

Face value oer share

3lst March 2025 3lst March 2024Particulars
i. Estimated amount ofcontracts to be executed on capital accounts

and not provided for against which advances paid

ii. Guarantees issued by Banks on behalfofCompany
1.,244.07 364.69iii. Guarantee / Bonds or other instruments given to Government

iv. Corporate Guarantee issued to a bank on behalfofsubsidiary

VADODARA
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Note No.30 Ratios

Particulars
items included in
numetator

items included in
denominator

Ratio

change in
the

ratio by
more than

2so/o as
compared to

the
preceding

year

(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilihes 0.77 No

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Long Term Debt + Short
Term Debt

Shareholder equity 4.16 No

[c) Debt Service Coverage Ratlo Earning Before Interest,
tax, Depreciation &
Amortisation

Totalp ncipal+Interest
on Borrowings

0.79 No

(d) Return on f,quity Ratio Eaming After Interest,
ta! Depreciatlon &
Amortisation

Average Shareholder's
Eq'Jtty

0.15 No

(e) I nventory tu rnover ratio Turnover Averaqe Inventory ?9.44 No

(oTrade Receivables turnover ratio Net Credit Sales Average Trade
Receivable

17.67 No

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio Net Credir Purchase Average Trade Payable 1.11 No

Ih] Net capital turnover ratio Toral Sales Avera{e workinE Capital -8.01 No

Iil Net profit ratio Nel Profit Ne! Sales 0.03 No

0) Return on Capital employed Earning Before Interest &
tax

Capitalemployed 0.84 No

(kl Return on investment Net Profit lnvestment 0.89 No

a
o

I

aa

o
o

H

c.A
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Notes on Financial Statements :

The classification of creditors as micro and small enterprise has been given for the parties from whom the confirmation has been received

regarding their classification as per MSMED Act The interest on delayed payment to such parties, ifany, has neither been determined nor has been

paid as per mutual understanding with such parties,

2 Trade receivables, Trade payables, Loans & Advances and Unsecured Loans have been taken at their book value subject to confirmation and

reconciliation.

3 Payments to Auditors
Lakhs

4 Employee Benefits:

The Gratuity liability & liability in respect of Leave Encashment is determined based on the Actuarial Valuation done by Actuary as at Balance Sheet

date in context of the Revised AS-15 issued by the ICAI, as follows

Exnenses Recosnized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Period 31st March 2025

Current Service Cost

Net lnterest Cost

Actuarial (Gains) /Losses
Past Service Cost - Non-Vested Benefit RecogntzBd D!!!!E the

Period
Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Recognized During the Period

IExpected Contributions by the Employees]
IGains) /Losses on Curtailments And Settlements
Net Effect of Chanees in Foreisn Exchanqe Rates

Chanee in Asset Ceilins
Exoenses Recoenized in the Statement of Profit or Loss 5.5s

Amount Recosnized in the Balance Sheet
(Present Value of Benefit Oblieation at the end of the Period)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period

Funded Status ISurplus/ (Deficit)
Unrecoqnized Past Service Cost at the end d the Period

Net ILiabiliW)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheeq (s,ss)

31st March 2025 31st March 2024Auditors Remuneration
6.00 0.7sAudit Fees (Excludins GST)

Tax Audit Fees

Companv Law Matters
GST

6.00 o.7sTotal

31st March 2025

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost 4.14

Past Service Cost t.41

ns on Curtailment
on

Rates

Actuarial i on to tn

on ons to ln

nancial Assum
Actuarial on - Due to nce

5.55

31st March 2025Assets
Period

on Assets

the
Contributions

Assets Transferred
IAssets Transferred Out/ Divestments]
(Benefit Paid from the Fund)

on SettlemenAssets
of Asset

In
to enceon

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Period

C
C,

a
o

lC

H'

VADODARA

Table Showing Chanqe in the Present Value ofDeRned Benetit Obligation
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period

Liabilitv Transferred ln/ Acquisitions

Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer)
Benefit Paid From the Fund)

The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange

Demosraohic Assumntions

leili n s

81



5 Related Party disclosure as identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors

(A) Related Parties and their Relationship

Details of related

(i) Details ofrelated party transactions and balances outstanding:
in Lakhs

Description of relationship Nature of Relationship Names of related parties
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Manasins Director Keyur Sheth

Kev Manasement Personnel (KMPI CFO Disha Sheth

Kev Manasement Personnel fKMPI Director Raiendra Sheth

Kev Manasement Personnel IKMP) Company Secretary Kruoa Dholakia
Entities in which KMP have sienificant influence Sister concern Company Vrundavan Stone Industries
Entities in which KMP have sisnificant influence Sister concern ComDanv Gandhi Traders

Entities in which KMP have sisnificant influence Sister concern ComDanv Shreeii Construction

Entities in which KMP have sisnificant influence Sister concern ComDanv Girirai TransDort Services

Entities in which KMP have sisnificant influence Sister concern Comoanv Inteeriw lnfrabuild
Entities in which KMP have sienificant influence Sister concern Company Rinku Traders
Entities in which KMP have sisnificant influence Sister concerD Company Balaii Traders

Entities in which KMP have sisnificant influence Sister concern Company Intesritv Infrabuild Pvt. Ltd.

Relatives of Kev manasement Dersonal Director's Relative Aaditva Desai

Relatives of Kev manasement Dersonal Director's Relative DeeD Sheth

Particulars Nature of Relationship 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Transactions durinq the year
Salary paid
Kevur Sheth Managing Director 62.22 15.00

Disha Sheth CFO B.9B 13.00

Raiendra Sheth Director 24.98 7.00

Krupa Dholakia Company Secretary 2.17

Purchase of Goods
Vrundavan Stone Industries Director is Partner 90.93 64.17

lntesritv Infrabuild Private Llmited Same Director 5 52.05 392.07

DeeD Sheth Director's Relative 7.62

Aaditya Desai Director's Relative 74.73

Girirai TransDort Director's Proorietorshio 5.00

Rinku Traders Director's Relative
Proprietorship

73.44 10.55

Advance received from Related Parties
Shreeii Construction Director is Partner 5.28

Balaji Traders Director's Relative
ProDrietorshio

2,25

Balances outstandins at the end of the year
Purchase of Goods
Vrundavan Stone lndustries Director is Partner 95.09

lntegrity Infrabuild Private Limited Same Director L29.05

Deep Sheth Director's Relative

Aadiwa Desai Director's Relative

Girirai TransDort Directort ProDrietorshiD

Rinku Traders Director's Relative
Proprietorship

Advance received from Related Parties
Shreeii Construction Director is Partner 5.28

Balaji Traders Director's Relative
Proprietorship

H I

t

a

o

C.A
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l.'

6 Other as per amendments in schedule lll

a) In case from banks or flnancial institutions on the basis ofsecurity olcurrent assets, tie quarterly returns or statements ofcurrent assets filed by

the Company bank5 or ffnanclal institutions are in agreement with the books ofaccounts.

b') ofCharges or Satisfaction with Registrar ofCompanies
satisfaction yet to be registered with the Regisu"ar ofCompanies beyond the statutory period, details and reasons thereof-

Current Year

All charges been duly registered with the Registrar ofCompanies in time except for the charges pertaining to loan from CNH bank

Previous Year
All charges been duly registered wlth the Registrar ofCompanies in time.

does not have any Benami property, where atry proceedinS has been inldated or petrdinS aSalnst the company for holdinSily Benami property.c) The

dl The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other Iender.

e) There is no Scheme ofArragements approved by the Competent Authority in tems ofsections 230 to 237ofthe Compaies AcL 2013.

fl The company has no such transaction which is Dot recorded in the book ofaccounts that has been surendered or disclosed as income during tlle year in the tax

g) The company have not traded or lnvested in Crypto currency or Viftual Currency during the year.

i) The company does not have any hansacdons with comPanles sFuck oIf.

i) The companydos not have any charges or satisfaction which is yetto be registered with RoC beyond t}te statutory period except for a loil for Car taken durlng

the year,

lntemediary shall:

(i) Direcfy or indlrectly lend or invest in other persons or enuues idendfled in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe company fultimate Beneffciaries) or

(ii) Provide any guaranteq securlty or the like to or on behalf ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

l) The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or enuty(ies), including foreiSn enti[es (Fundlng Party) wlth the undeFtanding (whether recorded in wrlting or

otheMise) that the ompanyshall:

(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identifled in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding Party (UlUmate Beneflciaries) or

(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultlmate Beneficiailes'

7 ln many clauss previous year figures has oot been mentiotred as the company is operating as Partnership Firm.

As per our report ofeven date

FoTOPRATHI&Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 108718W)

LIMITED

5h

RUCHI RATITI

Partner
Membershlp No.: 122137
uuru: lJ'l !2$| I lt vttt B zol?3

Whole-dme dlrector & ChlefFinancial Omcer
DIN: 09063221

K .,l 'g\, r-li' c,.

Managlng Dlrector
DIN:02678042

Krupa Dholakla
CompatrySeretary
PAN No:AU0PD4929M

Mem No: 470595

Place: Vadodara
Datei 30th May 2025

Place: Vadodara

Date: 30th May 2025
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